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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of South City
Projects (Kolkata) Limited,(“the Company”)}which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as
at 31* March, 2018, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “the
Standalone Ind AS Financial statements™). "

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015,as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds amnd other immegularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operaling effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matiers which ate required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and read with the Rules issued there under and the Order issued under
section 143(11) of the Act.

We have conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Standalope Ind AS financial statements are free from
malerial misstaterment, Ganjay g
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financisl control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statcments that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances. An audit alse includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as ¢valuating the overall
presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial staternents.

We believe that the sudit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Oplaion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standatone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and feir view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31" March,
2018, and its Profit including other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its Cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

The Comparative Financial information of the Company for the year ended 31* March,2017
and the transition date opening Balance Sheet as at 1* April,2016 included in these Standalone
fnd AS Financial Statements, are based on the previously issued Statutory Financial Statement
prepared in accordance with Companies(Accounting Standards) Rules,2006 audited by the
predecessor euditor, whose report for the year ended 31* March,2017 and 31% March,2016
dated 29° June,2017 and 8® September,2016 respectively expressed an Unmodified Opinion on
those Standalone Financial Statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting
principles, adopied by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

() We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 10 the best
of our knowledge and belief werg, potEs
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(b)[nouropmion.properbooksofaeooumasmqmmdbthhave been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Staternent of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this repost are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalope Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)Rules, 2013, as amended;

() On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on 31¥ March,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified
as on 31" March, 2018 from being appomted as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financiat
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure B”; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

1.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Standalone Ind AS financial statement- Refer Note 32(b) to the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There is no such sum which needs to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For AGRAWAL SANJAY & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.-329088E

(Radhakrishan Tondon)
Place: Kolkata Pariner
Dated; 27th June, 2018 Membership No. 060534
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A

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the mules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenarce of Cost Records
under section 148(1) of the Act, and are of the cpinion that prima facie the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained.

(8) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Value added Tax, Goods &
Services Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at 31" March, 2018 for a period of
more than six months from the date on which they became payable. During the year, the
company did not have any dues towards duty of excise and duty of custom;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material
dues in respect of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Custom Duty, Secvice Tax, Goods & Service
Tax and Cess except the following:

Ameunt under
Name of Flnauoelal Year to Forom where
the Statute Nm“ "'g:‘::d“;‘dw which the the dlspute
(Rs. In Lacs) amonnt relates is pending
Finance Act Service Tax 220 2002-0342003-04 ;"::W
Finance Act Servico Tax 66.27 2006-0782010-13 | APpetiateTribunal Kolkata
Finance Act Service Tax 11.88 2010-11 Appellate Tribwial Kolkata
Finance Ast Service Tax 397.42 2007-08£2011-12 Appellate Tribunal Kolkata
. . 2007-08t02011-12 | Commissioner,
Finance Act Service Tax 0.95% Service Tax(Appeal) Kolkta
Penalty w.rt JointCommissiazer,
Finance Act Demand 320 2002-03&2003-04 | Service Tax(Appeal),Kolkata
of Service Tax
Penslty w.r.t Appellate Tribunal Kolkata
Finance Act Demand 66.27 2006-0782010-11
Of Service Tax .
Penalty w.rt Appellate Teibunal Kolkata
Finance Act Demand 429.64 2007084201112
Of Service Tax
Penalty wr.t Conmissicner,
Finance Act Demand 095 2007-0882011-12 | Service Tax{Appeal), Kolkata
of Service Tax _
loyeesinsurance
Employee State | Employee State Emp
Insurance Act Insurance Ducs .62 2008-09 Court Kolkata
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not defegited in the repayment of ducs to banks.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Aet”)

We have audited the intemsl financial controls over financial reporting of South City Projects
(Kolkata) Limited (“the Company”) to the extent records available with us in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the company a5 of and for the year
ended 31% March, 2018,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance nots
on Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financisl controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting bagsed on our audit. We conducted our sudit in sccordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent spplicable 1o an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perfor the audit to obtain reasonable
nssmmeaboutwhﬂhwadethmﬂﬁmmhlcombwerfmciﬂmponingw
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or ervor.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLKATA) LIMITED
CIN No. - U21019WB1595PLC071252

Balance Sheet an at 31st March, 2018
¥ in Laca
Asat Anat Asat
Nates | 51032018 | 30032017 | ovodz01
ASSETS
er-(hmmtAum
Praperty, Pnr and Equipment 41 15,748.25 1325483 [ 1434036
Capital Werk-in-Progress 42 325643 439.05 399.12
Intangible Assety 4.3 497 10.31 220
Intangible Assers under Development 44 - - 1345
iRinancial Asscty
_l (a) Investments 5.1 42/089.24 42,199.51 18.941.26
(b} Trade Reccivables 52 211,09 36472 42682
+ fc) Loans 53 12018.33 3.784.18 22353.92
+ {d) Other Financial Assets 54 1,699.74 LT4T) | 164406
Other NonCurrent Asacts 7 4.457.41 3594-M 355095
- Total (A) 79,515.45 6595070 61,6714
"Cutrent Assets
!Inverorics 8 17.234.07 17.28049 1 2023641
-Fimanchl Assets
' {a) Trade Receivables 52 1,I00.01° 285809 78154
| {b) Cash and Cash 9.1 70.80: 62869 385.16
1 (©) Bank Balances other than (b) above 92 | 055 | 052 0.48
! (d} Loans 53 I,Ml 4506.06 181227
{c) Other Financial Assets 54 178.31 ; 41444 141.97
‘Cusrent Tax Assets (Net) 6.1 99621 264.16 45602
jOther Current Assets 7 1,599.21 49741 2947.6%
‘Total (B)I 2,579.45 26,918.86| 27,761.54
Total Asscts (A+B)l 102,084.91 92,870.56 %
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES !
Equity i i
Equiry Share Capita) i 10 450,07 450.07 450.07
Orther Equiry u 38,301.55 014601 32,6955
Total (A) 38,751.62 #0484.671 3314558
Liahilltics
Non-Current Lichilities
Financial Lishilities
{a) Borrowings 2 4,286.84 12,756.66 | 15,8846
(b} Other Financizl Liabitices 122 252237 183641 402241
Provisicos 13 241.11 11526 93.63
Deferred Tax Lishifities {(Net) 42 140127 1,205.04 590.89
Towl (B) 845250 | 1591337 19,505.89
Cuerent Lighilities
Financial Lighdlirics |
(a) Borrowings 121 30,700.01 21,76138 | 1339276
(B T'rade Payables 14 439301 560429 323688
{¢) Onher Financiel Lishilicics 122 16,839.43 747651 5565161
|Cther Current Liabilitics 15 288797 161472 1409407
Provigions 13 7023 35.62 17.3%
Toatal (C)I £4,850.70 3549252 3639271
Total Equity and Liablitics (A+B+C) 102,094.91 92,870.56 | 89,433.68
Significant Accounting Policies 23
The accompanying Rotos are an intepgral pact of the financial stetemenes.
As per our repost of even daie
For AGRAWAL SANJAY & COMPANY For and on behalf of Board of Dimctors

Chartered Accountants

South City Prejects (Kolkata) Lid.  South City P Kolkata) Lid.
\..__s_h}—""—""

e
Diractar

Firm Regretration Nu 329088E % ﬂ

Mirantor

For South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.

-

Compafiy Secretary



SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLKATA) LIMITED
CIN NO. - U21019WB1SS5PLCO7252
Statemen: of Profit & Loss forthe year ended 31 s1 March, 2018

: Xin Lacs
i Notes 2017-18 2016-17
INCOME !
Revenue from Opemtions 8 8,69212 2554894
Other fncome 19 594267 82
Total Income 14,634.79 30,791.76
EXPENSES
Construction Cost 20 193825 871827
Puschoses of Trded Goods . 92.68
{lnceeasc)/Decrease in Inventode of Finished Goods, Work-in-ropress 2 39139 4,187.09
Fmployee Bonefits Expenses 2] 71391 461.87
Finance Costa 1] 3688.62 338837
1Depreciation and Amartisation Expenses % 98285 1,118
Other Espenses 25 4,809.30 2,683.52
Total Expenses 250232 | 21,1528 |
Profit Before Tax 2,132.47 9,659.58
Tax Expense
Cusrent Tax : 613.81 1,700.00
Defored Tax 6.2 198.51 61635
Income Tax of Easticy Years §3.88 -
85620 2316.38
Peofit for the Year (T 1,265.27 730323
PM Compreheniive Income:
Itemts that will not be reclasdified to profit or loss in subsequent perdoda:
Re-mtcasurement gains and (losses) on defined baucht obligations {6.58) {634
Income tax cffeet thereof 228 220
Other comprchensive incame/(less) for the year, net of tax (II) {430} (4.14)
Total compechensive income fot the year, netofux (I + [) 1,260.97 31909
Eamings per Equity Share of ¥ 10 cach n
IBasic & Ditured 2814 16211
ISignificant accountng policics 23
Iﬂwmpnnyingnommaninmgnlputofﬂuﬁnmﬁlmmn | H
As per our seport on even date
Far AGRAWAL SANJAY 8 COMPANY For and on behalf of Board of Dicectors
Chartered Accountants
IFin Registration Noys South City Projects (Kolkate) Lid.  South City P kata) Ltd.
i St
— R
Diractor Director
For South City Projects (Kotkata) L.

Com y'S'é'ElEarv



SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLEATA) LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 3ict March, 2018

a. Equity Shace Capital:
Eaquity shares of Rs 10 each izsued, subscribed and fully paid No. of shases in Lace
As at 1 April 2005 4,500,700 450.07
Essue of share capital - -
Ar M Macch 2007 4,500,700 450,07
Tssuc of share capital - -
At 31 March 2018 700 450.07
b. Other equity
For ke year ended 3lst 2018 Tin Lacs
' Rescxves & Surplus ¢ Itemw of OC1
Pasticulars Securitics Premium |  Rotained @ Genoml FVTOC Total Equity
Account Reserve Regeeve
As at 1 Apsil 2017 £60.00 19,358.74 20,000.00 “A.14 40,014.60
Peofis for the year - 1,266.27 - 1,266.27
Other comprehensive income for
ropell ) ) @30 @39
Tota Comprehensive Income - 1,266.27 - @.20) 1,25L.97
the year
Dividends (Note 16) . (2475.39) . RA75.39)
Dividend distribution mx  on} - -
! dvidend Not 16 . (499.63) (499.63)
1As at 31 March 2018 660.00 11,649.99 |  20,000.00 {844} 38,301.58 |
For the year ended 31at March, 2017 ¥ in Lacs
Reserves & Surplus Itemns of OCL
Particulars Securities premium Reteined General FYTOCI ‘Tota! Equity
Aetcuat camings Rescrve fescIve
As at 1st April 2016 660.00 12,035.51 20,00000 - 32,595.51
Profit for the year - 732323 - - 732323
g:hcl comprehensive income for - - - {4.14) (4.14)
your
Total Comprehensive Income for - 132323 . 414y 7,319.09
the year
Dividends (Note 16) - . . -
Dividend  distiibution &ax  on - . . - !
Dividend (Note 16) -
|As at 31 Murch 2017 660.00 19,356.74 |  20,000.00 {4.14) 40,014.60
As per our ceport on even date
For AGRAWAL SANJAY & COMPANY For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chagtered Accoustants

Figm Regtmiion No : 3290888

Badhakrishan Tondon
Parecr

Membership No- 050534
Flzee; Kollkam

Dated: 27th june, 2018

South City Projocts (Kolkata) Lid. _ South City Projects
\__-_L-L:‘._.—“

S

Mirastor

L]
- e

For South Clty Projece. . =

mlk'a‘la) tid.

Nirartnr




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLKATA) LIMITED
Suatemens of Cash Flows for the yeat ended 31 March 2018

Netcash flow from Investing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Loan Taken/(Repaid)
Dividead paid (including act dividend distcbartion rx)
Interest paid

Net cash flow from Finencing Activithes

Net incacase / {docreasc) in cash acd cash equivalents (A+B4C)
Cash end Cash Equivalonts at the beginning of the yesr Refer note-9.1)
Cash and Cash Lquivalonts at the end of the year (Refer note-9.1)

| LinLacy
. As at As m
Pariculars 3L03.2018
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before tax 213247 9,639.58
Adjustment o reconcilo profit before 1ax o et cal fow
Depreciation & Amoctisation cxpensc 98285 1,118.89
Fintnée costs 3.656.00 355837
Share Demateriztisation & S1°T Expenscs 0.22 0.40
Sundsy Balanocs Wiieeen OFFf 1nsn 17.55
Dividend Received from non currear investments (2268) (557
Frofit on sk of non curvent investmenty {1732 {106.23)
Profit/(Loss) on sakc of Propesty, Plant & Equipment B52.63 032
Sundey Balances Written Back {0.49), (20:91)
Fair value (grin)/floss oo Gnancisd sasets 58971 (2.290.53)
Ieterest Income ml (2,168.33)!
Operating profit before working caplial changes 438046 10,135.70
Adiusmments for
Decroasc/ (Increase) in Wotking Capital
Iaventories 5542 394692
Trade Reccivables 1917 {2014.45
Trada (1,325.89) 23077
Loans, Deposits amd Othwer Financizl Assets (5,196.00) 1396684
Other Cursent and Noa Cusrent assets {1,594.50) 200592
Other Finanvial Lishilities 1004991 {361.10)
Provisions 15358 a2
Odier Curvent and Nos Cucrens LishiTiries 1,213.25 [EMX
Cash generated in opemtions 9,407.04 17.600.7F
[ncome Fax Peid {rer of refund) 631.00 39224
Net Cash inflow from  Opcrating Activities 8,776.84 17217.51
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: |
Dividend Received 2248 .87
Ietterest Reccived 103539 2,168.33
Sale of Propesty, Plant & Equipmout 512 4164
Sale of Non current lavestments 2917.38 204110
kL ey 425954
Lemn:  Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipmear 7,153.05 1027
Purcham of Noa current Investments - 23,1025
Share Dematedialisation & S1'1° Exponsca 0.2 0.50

46881 593682
(2:975.01) .
(3,456.08) {(3.95837)

(557.89) 24353

62869 38516

7080 62869

South City Projects (Kotkata) Lid.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLRATA) LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flrws for the year ended 31 March 2018 (Contd.)

Notes:
(2) The above Cash Flow Starcment has been prepared undee the “Indirect Method” &5 ser our in the Indisn Accounting
Standard (Ind AS - 7) - Smtement of Cash Flow.

& ¥ in Lacs
. Az at As at
Paciculars WS | 5.032087

Cash god Cash Eguivalanty compeises of

Cash in hand 5.07 7.69
Baltnces with banks:

= On current accoums 6546 620.55]
— Deposits with origina matusity of less than three months 027 025 |
Cash and Cash Equivalants in Cash Flow Statement 7080 623.69 |

(c) Amcndment o0 Ind AS 7
The xmeadments to Ind As -7 Cash Flow Statcments sequircs the entities to provide disclosure that enable users of financial

statoments to evaluste changes in Kobilities arislng from Bnsacing sefivities including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes suggesting inclusion of a roconcilistion beween opening and elusing balinoss in the balance sheet for
Lablitics adsing from Enancing activitics to meet the disclosune requirment. Thix amendment has become effective from
01042017 and the roquired disclasure i made below. Thees s no other impact on the fnanchl sttements duc to this
amendment .

Non -« Cash Changes
Cusreat/ Nan -
s As mt Falr Value ] As at
Particalars Cash Flow Current
31032017 | Changs e hcnion 31.03.2018

Basrowings - Non Cugrent 12,749.49 {8.479.93) - - 4,269.56
Other Financial Liabilities 591537 994021 (so.m}‘ . 15,795.54
Bomrowings - Cusrent 16,9422 §,192.22 - - 2313443
As por our repas of even date For and on behalf of Buard of Directors
For AGRAWAL SANJAY & COMPANY South City Projects (Kotkata) Lid. south City Projects
Chartered Accountants .
Fla e o o

Director Dlrectdr
Radhskrisban Tondon
Tastner
Picmerep No- Q4R For o Gty frsfemg Soleata) L

Dated: 27ch funte, 2018




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as axand for the year ended 31+ March, 2018
1. Corporate Information

South City Projects (Kolkata) Limited {teferred to as “the Company”) is a public limited company established
in 1995 under the Companies Act applicable in Indis. The Company is engaged in the business of real estate
development and also provides rental services, maintenance services which are related to the ovenll
development of real cstate business. The Company is domiciled in India and has its registered office at 375,
Prince Anwar Shah Road, Jadavpur, Kolkata — 700068.

2. Basis of Preparation of financial statements
a) Compliance with INDAS

For gl] petiods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its finandial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the secdon 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read together with parsgeaph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These
financial statements for the year ended 312 March 2018 are the first financial statements which the Company
has prepared in eccordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") including the Ind AS specified
under Secton 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. Refer to note 38(1) and 38(2) for information on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of directors on
27.06.2018.

b) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concetn basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost
basis, except for certain assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair values as explained in relevant
accounting principles.

Accounting policies have been consiscently applied cxcept where a newly issued accounting seandard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing sccounting standard requires a change in the sccounting policy
hitherto in use.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Operating Cycle

Based on the natute of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its opecating cycle a5 sixty months for
ongoing projects and twelve months in case of completed projects for the putpose of current- noncusent
classification of asscts and liabilities. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or son-cugrent 28
per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule ITT to the Companies
Act, 2013,

3.2. Foreign Currencies

Htems included in the Snancial statements of the Company are measused using the cuerency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The Gnancial statements
are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and preseatation currency.

South City Projects (Kolkata) Lw. Sauth City Projects (Kajkata) Lia.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as stand for the year ended 31% March, 2018

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in by the Company at spot rates at the functional
cucrency spot rate (i, INR) at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition, Monetary assets acd
liabilides denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at
the reporting date.

Fozeign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions in foreign currencies and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in 2 foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
The gain or loss arising on wanslaton of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i, translation differences on items
due to fair valuation is recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

3.3. Fait Value Measurement

Fair value is the ptice that would be received o sell an asser or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

1) In the principal market for the asset oz liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or hsbility.

The principal or the most adventagecus market must be sccessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that macket participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that macket paricipants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of 2 non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to genecate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another macket participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are sppropiate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure faix value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Bnancial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, desciibed 23 follows, besed on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as o whole:

8) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets ot liabilities
b) Level 2 — Valuation technicues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair velue
measurement is directly or indirecdy observable
¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financizl smtements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occursed between levels in the hieraschy by re-assessing categotisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting petiod.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements as atand for the year ended 31 Macch, 2018

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset ot liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

34, Use of Bstimates

Thep:epmtionofﬁmncialmmemsinconfommitywithlndmmqukesthemanaganentmmke
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expentes, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent lishilities during and st the end of the reporting pesiod. Although
thesc cstimates ate based on the management’s best knowledge of cutrent events and actions, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outeomes requiring a material adjustment ¢o the
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

35. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cnshmdmshequivalantinﬂlebdameshmmmpﬁsemhatbanhmdmhmdmdshm-mdepoﬁts
witlunoﬁg?mlmm:ityofthmemﬁsmless.whichmsubiectmmimiguiﬁumdskofdm:geain
value.

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipment

The Compmyhasdemdmadopttheemyingvalueof?mpeﬂy,letdeqxﬁpmmtundc:theIndim
GAAP 2 on 12 April 2016, as the deemed cost for the purpose of transition to IND AS.

Property, plaat and equipment and capital work in progress are carried at cost of acquisition, on current
cost basis Jess scrumulated depreciation and sccumulated impairment, if any. Cost comptises pucchase price
mddinecﬂyanﬁbunblcmtofbdngingﬂummimwrﬁngmndiﬁmforthehmdedm.&nymdz
discounts and rebates age deducted in azriving st the purchase price. Such cost includes the cost of replscing
part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
critetia are met. Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and
whose use is expectedtobeirteguhrmcapiuﬂsedmddepndzmdommemeﬁﬂﬁfeoﬂhepdndpdim
of the relevant assets. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be ceplaced st intervala,
the Company dcpwdmsdmmupmtdyhmdonlheirspedﬁcuseﬁﬂﬁvea.liku&se,whmamior
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant snd equipmeat 5 2
mphommtifﬂaemogniﬁoacduﬁamuﬁsﬁeiﬂnothuupahmdminmemmucmcognisedin
profit of loss as incurred.

Animnofpmpmy,plantmdequipmmtmdanysigniﬁmtputiniﬁallymoglﬁsedis derecognised upon
dispmdorwhmnoﬁameoonomicbmeﬁumupemd&omitsmordispomlAnygahotloesaﬁsing
onde-remgsﬁﬁonofﬂleasm(calcuhmdasﬁediﬁmubetweenthenetdispuulpmmdsmdthe
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset it derecognised.
Depredationispmvidedonw&tteadnwnvab;emeﬂwdovettheuseﬁﬂﬁmofpmpeﬂy,phntmd
equipment 23 estimated by management. Pursuait to Notification of Schedule II of the Companies Act,
2013depncdationispmvidedonpmmbesisonwduendownvﬂuemethodatthcmmdemhedhud
on estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment where applicable. Howeves, leaschold land is
depreciated over lease period on straight line basis.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements asatand for the year ended 31% Masch, 2018

“The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropsiate.

3.7. Intangible Asscts

The Company has elected to adopt the carrying value of Intangible Assets under the Indian GAAP as on 1*
April 2016, 23 the deemed cost for the purpose of transition to IND AS.

Intangible Assets are recognized only when futuse economic benefits arising out of the assets flow to the
enterprise and ate amortised aver their vscful life of three years. Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost. Follawing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization snd accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intemally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and are charged to Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year duting which such expendinre is incurzed.

3.8. Capital wock-in-progress and intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development are carsied at cost. Cost includes land,
related acquisition expenses, development / construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct
expenditre.

3.9 lavestment Property

Management has assessed applicability of Ind AS 40 - Investment Property to the property held 1 camn
income from rentals. In assessing such applicability, management has considered the ownesship of assets,
terms of license agreement, various sexvices provided to the licensce etc. The Company considers these
other services a8 significant in addition to the charged. Based on such assessment, the management bas
considered the mall property as owner occupied propenty and hence classified as Property, Planc &
Equipment,

310 Impaicment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An assef’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s ot cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use, The
recoversble amount is determined for an individual assct, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that ace lasgely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of
an asset ot CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the assct is considered impaiced and is written down to its
trecoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their preseat value using a pre-
tax discount rate thar reflects current maket sssessments of the time value of moncy and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent macket transactions are taken into account, if available.
1f no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

3.11. Inventories
Raw materials, Construction work-in-progress and finished goods ate stated at the lower of cost and net
renlisable velue. Cost of inventories comprise all cost of purchase including cost of land, borrowing cost,
development costs and other cost incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. The
cost, in general, is determined using weighted average cost method.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statcments asatand for the year ended 31% March, 2018

Contract cost incutred related to future activity of the contract are recognised as an asset provided it is
probable that they will be recovered during the contract period. Such costs represent the amount due from
customer and are often classified as Construction wotk-in-progress.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and eatimated costs necessary to make the sale.
3.12, Revenue and Other Income

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and it
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/seceivable
net of rebare and taxes. The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each nawure of revenue
transaction as set-out below:

Principles of Ind AS 18 in respect of sale of goods for recoguising revenue, costs and profits fom
transactions of real cstate which are in substance similar to delivery of goods when the revenue

recognition process is completed; and

In case of real estate sales where agreement for sale is executed for under construction properties,
revenue in respect of individual contracts is recognised when performance on the contract is considered

to be completed.

Interest Income is recognised using the effective interest method and is included under the head ‘Other
Income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established.

All other incomes are recognised on accyual basis.

3.13. Employee Benefits
1. Defined Contribution Plan

Provident Fund

Contributions in respect of all Employees ace made to the Regional Provident Fund as per the
provisions of Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when services are rendered by employees. The Company has no
obligation other than the contribution payable to the Regional Provident fund.

il. Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity

Gatuity is & post-cmployment benefit and is in the matuee of a defined benefit plaa. The Lability
ized in the balance sheet in respect of gmtuity is the present value of the defined
benefit/obligation at the balance sheet date, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuacial gains
or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation is calculated st or near the balance sheet
date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. This is based on standard rates
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statcments asatand forthe yearended 31 March, 2018

of inflation, salacy growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by
reference to market yields on government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the tezms of
the related liability, Current Service cost and Interest component on the Company’s defined benefit plan.
is included in employee benefits expense. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the
liability are included in other comprehensive income.

HI. Long Term Compensated Absences

The Company treats accumulated leave to the extent such leave arc carried forward g3 long-term

benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-tecm compensated sbsences are provided for
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Current Service
cost and Interest component arising out of such valuation is included in employee benefits expense.
Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the lisbility are included in other

ive income. The Company presents the leave as s current liability in the balance sheet, to the
extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting
date.Wthompanyhasmeunmndiﬁoml!egalandmmmldglunodcfe:thcsetdunentfo:a
period beyond 12 months, the samc is presented a5 non-current lishility.

3.14. Leases

The determination of whether an acrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
mngcmmtatthehupﬁonof&cmmmmmth.mmuim.a!ﬂaeifﬁdﬂm:ofﬁe
amngunmtkdepmdmtmlheuseofupe&ﬁnsmmmmdthemmgemmtmwyudght
to use the asset or assets, even if that dght is not explicity specified in an arangement.

For amngements entered into prior to 1 Apdl 2016, the geoup has determined whether the
amngcmmtmminlenumd:ebasisofﬁcﬁmdc&wmmeﬂdngmthedmofmmiﬁm

Ar a lersee

A lease is classified at the inception date a3 a finance lease or an opezating lease. A lease that transfers
mbamﬁaﬂyaﬂﬂxeﬁsksaudrewmisincidenulwowmhipmtheCompanyisdassiﬁedauﬁmwe
lease.

Finmcelasesueapimlisedatthemmmmmnmtofﬁmleasutﬁmheepﬁmdateatthe fair value
of&elusedpmpertyor,iflowe:,atthcpmtwlueofﬂmuﬁnimumlmcpaymls.lmse
peymenumappor&onadhetmﬁnnnccchugumdreducﬁonofﬂ:eleaaeﬁabﬂitysoasmad&we
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance chasges are recognised in
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly
Attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s
policy on the borrowing costs (Sec note 3.17). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset However, if there is no reasonable
certainty thattheCompmywillobuinownmhipbythemdof:helmsenean,meﬁsctisdepncinud
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements asatand foc the yeac ended 31+ March, 2018

Opecating lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Statement of
Profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured
10 increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationacy
cost increases.

As a lecsor

Leases in which theCompmydounotmfe:snbsﬂnﬁnﬂyaﬂﬁeﬁsknmdrmvdsofmmhipof
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on 2
steaight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
mngingmopmﬁngleusemaddedtothecauﬁngammmtofdaeleasedassetmdrecoguiwdovu
the lease term on the same basis as rental income, Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are eamed.

3.15. Taxes on Income
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax
jurisdietions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

De&mduxhpmﬁdedudngtheBdehmthonmpmyﬁﬁmmadshgbmm
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the fnancial statements at the
reporting date. Deferred income tax is not sccounted for if it atises from initial secognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that st the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
mexpecwdtoapplywhcndlemhuddefemdincommassctisruﬁsedorthede&mrlimmnelax
Liability is scttled.

Deferred tax assets ate recognised for all deduetible temporary differences and unused tax losses oaly
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utlise those temporary differences and
losses.

The carying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longee probable that sufficient taxable profit wiil be available to allow all or past of the
defetred tax asset to be utilised. Untecognised deferred tax asscts are re-nssessed at each reporting date
and aze tecognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilides are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax sssets and tax linbilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or 1o realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements 23 atand for the year ended 31 March, 2018

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to iterns
secognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and 2ccounting
income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the cadier years.
Deferred tax is measured using the tax tates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.
3.16. Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognized when an entezprise has a present obligation (Jegal o¢ constructive) as a result
of past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic beaefits will be required
to secle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
expense relating to 4 provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is materisl, provisions are discounted using & current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropiate, the sitks specific to the liability,. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised a5 a finance cost.

A contingent lisbility is a possible obligation that atises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occumrence of one ot more uncertain future cvents beyond the
coatrol of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resonrces will be required to settle the obligaton. The Company docs not recognize 4
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the finandial statements.

3.172. Borrowing Costs

Bomowing Costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded 25 an adjustment to the
bomowing costs. Bomrowing Costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the
period from commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset
up to the date the asset s ready for its intended use is added to the cost of the sasets. Capitalisation of
BomﬁngComismspmdadmdchugedtoduSmementomeﬁtandlassduﬁngumdad
petiods when active developrent activity on the qualifying assets is interrapted. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the petiod they ocoue.

318, Eaeninpgs per Shase

Basic Earnings per Shae is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable 1o
equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the pesiod.
For the purpose of calculating diluted eatnings per share, the net profit or loss for the pesiod
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shaes.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all pedods
peesented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares that have changed the numbser of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in

pesources.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31% March, 2018
3.19. Financial Instruments

A financial ingtrament is any contract that gives rise to a Bnancial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of ancther entity.

A. Financial assets
i. Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of Ginancial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

fi. Subsequent measurcement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

a. Debt instruments at amortised cost
b. Equity instruments measured at fuir value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI

Debt instruments at amortised cost other than derivative contracta

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following cenditions are met:
¢ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
e Contractual terms of the ssset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal smount outstanding.

Afier initial measurement, such Snancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that aze an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in fnance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised
in the profit or loss. This categary genesally applies to trade and other receivables.

Equity invesiments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are messured st fuir value other than equity investments
measured at deemed cost on fitst time adoption of Ind AS as set out in Note 37, Equity instruments
which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
decides to classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to dlassify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI 10 Statement of Profit and Loss, cven, on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer
the cumnulative gain or loss within equity,

Equity instroments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
tecognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as atand for the year ended 31+ March, 2018

ili. De-recognition
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a2 Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:
® ‘The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
o the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assec

fv. Impairment of financial aseets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:
s Financial assers that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost eg., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

The Company follows “simplified approach” for recogition of impairment logs sllawanice on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit siske
Rather, it recognises impaimment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, tight
from its initial recognition,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default eveats over the expected
life of & financial insqument. ECL is the difference besween all contractual cash flows that aze due to
ﬂ:eCompmyhacoordmwiththcmmtmdaﬂﬂwmhﬂawsthatlheeutityexpecuwmoeive.
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contracmual terms of the financial instrument @ncluding prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instroment. However, in rare
cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated relisbly, then
the entity is required 1o use the remaining contractual teem of the financial inszument

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Company uses s provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowsnce
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision mateix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the cxpected lifs of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
wuyuporﬁngdam,ﬂ:eﬁawﬁmlobsavedde&ukmmup&mdmdchmguhlhefomd-
tooking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (ot reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is seflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for vatious financial instruments is described
below:
¢ Financial assets measured ar amortised cost: ECL is presented as an sllownnce, ie., as an
inmg:alpanofﬁmmmentofdmcmhmebahncesmnedbwuu
reduces the net canying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the group does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For asscssing increase in credit dsk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit tisk chamctesistics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit sk to be identified on a timely basis. -
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements asatand for the year ended 31 March, 2018

B. Financial Liabilities
i. Inidal cecognition and measutement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
boerowings and payables, investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, net of directly
atributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other paysbles, loans and borrowings
including bank overdraits, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

ji. Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financizl liabilities depends on their classification, a5 described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivatives, financial lisbilities held for
mdingandﬁmudalliabililiesdedgnatedupminiﬂdmgtﬂﬁonasat&itvmethm;ghpmﬁtorm
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incucred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category slso includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Company that ate not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships a3 defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated us
effective hedging instruments.

Gaius or losses on liabilitics held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Fmdalliabiliﬁesdesigmteduponiniﬁnlmmg:ﬁlimu&irvﬂmthmughpmﬁtorlossmdea’gnnmd
as such at the initial date of cecopnition, and only if the cxiteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For
libilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit cisks are
recognized in OCL, These gains/ loss are not subsequently transfecred to P&L. However, the
Compauymayt:mst’erﬂ:emuhﬁvepino:hsswithinequity.ﬂotherchmpinfa&vﬂueofmd:
liability ace recognised in the staternent of profit or loss.

Bozrowings

Afier initial recognition, interest-beacing loans and borrawings are subsequently measured at amorrised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the Eabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount oz preminm on acquisition and fees
ar costs that are an integsal part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Trade receivables

Teade receivables are recognised initially at fair valve and subsequendy measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for doubtful debts.

South City Projects -
South City Projacts (Kolkata) Ld. w%
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements a2s atand forthe year ended 31% March, 2018

3.20.

Trade and othee payables

These amounts represent lisbilities for goods and sexvices provided to the Company pior to the end
of financia) year. The amounts are generally unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within the Company’s operating cycle. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financis] guarantec contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that tequire a payment to be
made to reimburse the lender for a loss it incurs because the specified borrower fuils to make a
paymient when due in accordance with the terms of a loan agreement. Financial guarantee contracts are
cecognised, initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly amibutable
t the issuance of the guanintee. Subsequenty, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of
loss allowance determitied as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised
less cumulative amortisation.

De-tecognition

A financizl li 'tyisdemognhcdwhmﬂteobligaﬁmmdutbelhhﬂityiscﬁmhn@dotumeﬂedm
expites. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
mbsmﬁaﬂy&ffumtmmthemofmeﬁsﬁngmwmsubsmﬁsﬂymodiﬁed.suchm
exchangeormodiﬁcaﬁonisﬂeahdmthede—mmgniﬁmofﬁeoﬁg‘nﬂﬁnbﬂitymdd:etecoglﬁﬁonol'
anewliability.'mediffmoeinﬂlempecﬁvemryingammtsisrecoguiudinﬂ:emmemof
profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balanee theet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
setile on a net basis, to realise the assets and setile the liabilities simultaneously.

Operating Segments

The Business process and Risk Management Committee of the Company, sppsoved by the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee pecforms the function of allotment of resources and assessment of
performance of the Company. Considering the level of activities performed, frequency of their
meetings and level of finality of their decisions, the Company has identified that Chiel Operuting
Decision Maker function is being performed by the Business process and Rick Management
Committee. The financial information presented to the Business process and Risk Management
Committee in the context of results and fo the purposes of approving the annual operating plan is on
a consolidated basis. The Company’s business activity falls within three reportable business segment
viz. Real estate projects development’, ‘rental activities’ and ‘others - unallocated’. The sales being
opetated wholly in the domestic macket, the financial statement are reflective of the information
required by Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs
as per the requirement of Schedule IIT to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

- -

Direcior
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notea to Financial Stetements for the year ended 3ot March, 2018

Natr 4.1 - Propesty, Plant axd Equipmact (Current Year) TinLace
Particulam T Grovs Biock at Cont | Depreciation / Amortisation Net Block
Asae Additlons® Disposals / Asat Asmt DepnFor | Disposats/ Asar Anat Agat
01.04.2017 Adjusementy | 3L03.2018 | 01.04.2007 | the Yesr | Adjossmenn | 3L033016 | 30032018 | 3L03.2017
Tosschold Laad 98199 98109 1490 490 29.50 95129 966.19
18,783.77 L0348 | 1274029 | 1071534
1320 18 17t 1231
193263 612 | i2a9| 1259
96.43 3% 3008 2852
244.04 153049 187.81
sL& 94.66 S5.17
LIt uor 9.03
us A3 2205
3361 18835 2188
61] 1574825 | 13254.88 |
South Ciry_Msll Extension 43905 | 700048 4,183.00 | _ 325643 |
TOTAL 439.05 | 7,00048 418310 | 325643
* Intludes Rs, 126.57 hes towards intercst,
Note 4.3 - Intangible Asscts (Cament Year)
Particulars Grosa Block ai Coat ” Depreciation 7 Amostieatien Nes Block
A Addidons Dispoaals / Avt As ot Depn Foe | Disposals / Asmt Asat Asm
01.04.2017 Adiostments | 31.03.2018 | 01042017 | the Year | Adjustments | 31032018 | 30032018 | 3L03.2017
Compuicr Sofeware 1599 . - 1599 5.68 534 1ne 497 1031 |
TOTAL 15.99 5.8 5.34 12 497 LT

couth City Projects (Kolkata) Lid.  South City Projects .é
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Stasements for the yeax ended 3151 March, 2018

Noie 4.1 - Propenty, Plant and Equipment (Previous Year) Tin Lace
= R —__ Gross Blockat Cost T Depreciation / Amortissiion ~ Net Block
As s
- Disposale / Aews As Forthe | Dispossh/ Asat M Asw
Morap it el Addiions | \yienent | SLOS20D | 0LOAZ0IS | Year | Adjustmenw | 3108207 | 31032007 | o1042015
Loascholdland 96109 L0 1490 14.90 966.19 981.09
 Buidings . . s —— ]
Operating Lease 11,229.19 - | e 51385 | spas| w754 229.19
Others 848 1293 s21| 1B 059 089 1231 848
Flant & Iquipments 51824 - T aemm24 3231 38231 1,218.93 51824
| Fire Prosection System 28.52 I _| ___a8s2 = - 2852 2852
1élccrrical lnstalation & Bquiparcnts 33857 1.60 __Iwm 15206 15206 | 18781 33821
Furninure and Fixrercs B3.65 470 ___ 8818 3259 3259 55.17 8366
| Vehitles —
Fioance Losse 13.18 - T 1wa 415 415 9.03
Othen 17 1096 97 7T 558 558 2285
Office Eaquipment 21.99 667 T 2866 618 ] 678 | 2188 9%
OTAL 14,310.36 3656 918 | 14,368.04 111321 T aasai|  13asess 439036
Notc 4.2 - Capital werk in Progress (Previous Year)
Pardeufars Grosa Dlock st Cost
Asat Additlony Disposals / Asar
SC Msll Estension 309 se62| 18,69 439.05
OTAL T e 58.62 1869 439.05
No ntangihle aesers (Previous Yeas)
Particubus Gross Block at Cost____ Depreciation / Amortisation ~ NeiBlock |
Asat Addidons Asmt Asat - Aamt Asmt As st
Dirpesals / Forthe | Disposals/
0104.2016 {refer sosany | oroe2016 31032017 | 3L032017 | OLOC2016
note 45 below) |: j .-_u.n‘n.I. _ . Year Adj d_ o ]
Computes Sofoware 220 (£S5 J O T _568 o e _som] T 2]
TOTAL N 568 "220

- - e T st T 220
Sauth City Projects (Kotkata) Lia. South Gty Projects @uﬂ. _.W
et
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Notc 4.4 « Intangible Asscts Undcr Development (Pravious Yead)

Particuluss ... GrosaBlock ai Cont

Asat
orpezors | Additlens | Coplulleation | 5595705

Farvision ERP N 1345 S Y

TOTAL ) 1345 ..-_._..W TTwas| -

Nowe 45
Foe Property, Plant and Equipmeas, [ntsngible asstes 23 on st Apeil 2016, L.e., the date of tansition 1o Ind AS, the company has used Indian GAAP valuz o3 deemned cout os peemitted by Ind AS 101- Fiest

"Time Adoption . Accordingly the net block as pee [ndian GAAP a3 on _n>v&3_arnu§%ﬁmaﬂ§§ﬁu_=m.>m.?§§.r_§n.ﬁm33u5&omﬁnﬁl>?m3_a.wﬁ
belor.

a) Peopecty, Plant and Equipment

Particulars Gross hlack Net block
depreciation

Leaschold Land 108781 0632|8109

Operting Lease 19,765.68 853649 11,225.19
a 575 8.48




SOUTH CITY FROJECTS (EDLEATA) LIMITED
Noies to Financial Statements for the year ended 3ist March, 2018

Note 5.1 - Financia] Assets - Investments
Nusnber of sharen Tin Lacs

MNominal
Value Axat Asat Asat Asat As st Asm
_perunit  31.03.2018 31032017  OLOA.2086 310332018 31012017 O0L04.2016

Tavesuments (Fully Paid)

At Amoytised Cost:
Investment ia Preference Shares - Ungaoted

In Subsidiary Companies -
AA Infra Propertics Pot. Lad. 1 1750000 1750000 1,750,000 139205 139205 _ 1,39205
EE Eﬂi 139205
Debentures - Unquoied
Vijapbhan tnvestments & Consuleancy Pue. Lud. 1,500 . - 765000 - - 76.50
Taal = - 7550
At Deomad Cost (Refer Nate 37)
Eguited sharesUngquoted
I Subgidiare G i
South City Retreat Propeaty Mansgement Pyt Jad 10 1000 1,000 1,060 C.10 0.10 910
South Clty Properey Management Peivase Led. 10 10200 10,200 10,200 102 102 102
South Ciy Mateix Infastrootuee Lid. 0 199,300 199,360 177,500 23 23,39 1773
AA Infra Peopenics Pve, Lol ** 10 358,750 318,750 258,750 3588 3588 35.58
South Ciry Interratioral School LY 15,300 15,300 15,300 1.5 1.53 1.53
South Ciry Developers Put Lt 10 9500 9,800 9,500 0.98 058 0.98
South City Projeers FZE 150,000 i 1 1 - - -
Bty Componeat of Proference Shares in AA
tnfaproperties Pvt Lud (Refer Nore 41) L2295 12295 12295
Bengal Anmol South Ciry Infrassrucrure Lid, 0 123,900 123,300 123,900 1239 1239 1239
Towd 1IN L3N24 1,302.58
InOthers
Bengal Electric Woak Lad # 30 1,500 1,500 1,500 . . .
Bengal Lamp lad, # 10 17833 17,833 17833 - - -
Bedex [ndia Ead ¥ 0 1599 1,999 199 - - -
Total - . .
At Fair Value threugh Profit & Loss -
Equity Sbares - Quoted
In Qiher Companics
Bombay Dycing & Mg, Company Lad." 2 5 5 5 ont 0.00 0.00
DLF lad® 2 1 1 ] 0.00 0.00 0.00
Godrrj lndustrics Jad” 1 | 1 ] 0.01 0.01 0.00
Hindustan Coastruction Company Led.” 1 2 2 2 0.00 0.00 0.00
Housleg Devclopment & Infis Ll 10 1 1 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
Rattan Instia Infeaseeuctuce Lad.* 2 2 2 2 0.0 Q.00 .00
Indiabulls Real Hetate Lid* 2 1 1 1 0.00 ate] 000
Omaxe Lol* i) 1 1 1 .00 0.00 D.00
Parsvoath Dovelopees Lal” 5 2 2 2 0.00 0.00 0.00
Purvankan Prajects Lad.® 5 1 1 l 8480 0.00 0.00
Relianee Industrics Lod 1 10,000 10,000 10,000 88.28 13209 10452
Sobha Developers 1.nd* 10 1 1 | oo 0.00 000
Unitech Lad= 2 1 1 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
Cokul Agro Resources Limited 2 . . 1,685,000 . . mn
Gokul Refoils & Solvents Limited 2 - - 1,685,000 - - 19209
Tatal 88.31 1210 47438

= ReferNow 40
# ‘Theshares are pending tmnsler in Companys mame.

South City Projects (Koikata) Lid. South City Projects (m
e S A
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMKTED
Notes eo Financlal Statements for the year ended 31t March, 2018
Nate 5.1 - Financlat Agsets - Investments (Centd.)

Number of sharcd £ in Lacs
Nominal
Value Asax A An Agar Anat As ax
_perumit _3L032018  3L0A2017  0L04.2016 3103.2018 31032017 0142016
At Fals Value theough Profit & Loss:

TIn Units of Mutual Fund - Quoted %
Birds Sun Life FTP - Carponute Boad Sexics (G) 10 2681260 42681,260 21,000,000 280577  5425%8 281784
Komk FMP Sedes 122 (G) 10 - . 12,000,000 . - 1488350
Rebissoe Corporaze Boed Fund (G) 10 1837620 1337741 18377523 257526 242033 217600
Birk Sambife Mediom Term Plan (G) 10 5916565 5,916,565 5,916,565 130036 120755 1,103.00
Franklin India Cop Bond Opporrunities Fund (G) 10 8255392 625532 8,255,392 148952 137865 L4524
Hdfc Corparate Debe Oppostunitics Fund - R - (G) 1 17840,074 178349074 1TBA%IM 257224 242035 2,190.41
Hdfe Cospoaite Debt Opporruaitics Fund - D - (G) 10 4438251 4433251 4,438,258 66231 61780 594.28
1CICH Prudensia) Munal Fend (G) 10 5373038 937303 0373038  25M5 2575 21610
FuankEn [ndis Cosp Boad Oppostunities Fund (G) 10 14301548 14301548 14,301,548 258043  2388M 215125
ICIC) Prudentia) Regulas Savings Fund - Growdh 10 16416649 16416540 - 3N 2B51LST -
BO1 AXA Corpomte Credit Spectrum Fund 10 3157405  B157.405 . 108885 100010 .
HDFC Corpozite Debt Opportunitics Fund 10 592149 5921496 . 85335 80295 -
Kotk Jacoms Oppormunites Foad (G) 10 29581666 29,661,666 . 567279 5330 .
L 2T Muzaal Fund - Collection Aceount 10 9655097 695097 . 193020 181026 .
Reliznce Corporate Bond Fund » Direct Growth Accotunt 10 10483436 10483436 - 151800 141212 .
Relianes Cosporate Bond Fund - Growth Plan 16 7631319 7537369 . 107022 100583 .
LT Mutusl Funid Callertion A/C 10 10309244 1090924 - 170817 gL .
DS Black Rock Munual Fund Collection Accouny 0 8045501  BO44,501 . 230717 216290 -
DSP Black Rock lncoms Oppactunisies Fund {3) 10 12087855 12087855 - 348848 320012 .
Total AT A1 1560574

South City Projecis (Kolkala) LiC. g4 City Projects (@k&lﬁ) L.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes co Financial Statemenss for the year ended 315t March, 2018
Note 5.1 - Finarclal Assets - Investents (Cantd.)

Numtber of shares Cin Lacs
Nominal
Value Asat Apat Asat Asat Asat Asat
perunit 31032018 31053017 0L04.2016 3L03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2015
At Palr Value through Profit & Loss:
Investeuts through PALS Pool Account in Quoted Shares
Ajuss Phasena Ll 2 - 186 - - iz -
Amam Rajs Bantedies Led 1 - 50 - - 471 -
Asian Prines Lod 1 437 437 - 490 4.68 -
Asi] Paly Technik 1ad 1 87 87 - 7405 431 -
Bajaj Fingnee Ltd 2 463 570 - iy &70 -
Baja] Finserv Led -1 160 172 - .29 703 -
Britannia Indusiries Lid 2 145 164 - 721 555 .
Cholamasdalam tavest And Finaace Company Led 10 553 407 - 802 ass -
Dalria Bhaezt Lad* 2 117 0 . i - -
Divis Lebommdes Lad* 2 225 0 - 245 - -
Eiches Mators Leod 10 21 n . 59 537 -
Havells Indis Ltd 1 1258 1094 - 614 512 -
Indusind Bank Ltd 10 462 421 . 230 593 -
Kok Mahindm Bank Limited 5 512 512 - 537 447 .
1lapin Lod 2 w . . 504 -
MRFLd 0 9 9 - 6.5t 547 .
Max Finsncial Services Lod 2 2 - - 1)1 . -
Mindn ladustics Led 2 M - - 152 . -
Matherson Sumi Systems Lud 1 1940 1556 - 405 580 .
P Induatries Lod 1 T2 (] - &4 537 -
Poge [ndustries Ltd 10 k)| 3% - 7.0 s.27 -
Pidilite Industrics Lad 1 406 551 - m 55 .
Shree Cements Lud 10 16 25 . % 423 -
Welspun India Led 1 5412 e - 117 287 -
‘Tozal 1590 58.9% -
Total Non Cisreent Inveatmenrs 42,0892 42,59951 18,541.26

Aggeegate amount of Quoted Investments
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Envestments

Aggregate Deemed Cost for those investments for which: the Peevious GAAP canvying

amount {8 the deemed cost.
= Refer Note 40

2,654.63

= 10762 mmbaofa-mwa‘lewmmMpwmmmmmmmmmmWof

Indoceen Developers (Pivate) Lid (Step Down Sabsidary).

""RepmumuiﬁeophdgedwiihMsme&wumuﬁqagﬁmmedGmmhkmbythemmadiahrdmtmmﬂu

cxcept 69.20,000 units of Kotk Income Opposrunitics Fund (G).

South City Projects (Kolkata) L. - South City Projscts (
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SOUTH CI'TY PROJECTS (EOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financis] Statementa for the year ended 3t March, 2018

Nowc 8.2 - Trade Receivables €in Laca
(Unsecured) Non-Cursent Current
As at At Asm Asat Anat Asat
31.03.2018 3L03.2087 01.04.2016 3L0AZ0I8  AL03.2017 01.04.2018
Coasidered good 21.09 3Ga72 A26.82 110001 285009 78154
2L05 6.2 [VT) L 2858.00 THLEA
Noie 5.3« Loans
(Unsecured consideved good unless otherarise sraned) CinLacs
Nop-Current Cument
Asat Asaot Asut Asat Asnt Anat
032018 31.03.2017 0L042016 31,03,2019  ILBA2017 01042016
Security ; 16214 24806 25347 . - 6059
Loans to rehited pasty (Refer Note 35) ¢
Subsidiary Coorparsics
Lonsidered Good 11,856.19 151612 Z2,10045 " - -
Lorsidered Doubtéul [T A é%.11 -7, 48]
Less : Provicon for Doubtfid Advances 019.% - 67N - 681 - - -
Onkery 100.00 00,00 150.00
Other Loans 1,300.-29 4,506.06 150168
Tacal Loass 12,0183 378418 B3R A0 40606 isizs

l.nmmmduimiwmeﬁdmnnﬁnﬂmmmmhwmy.mmmmhmwwinhm&

risk of the coutnier partics.
* Loaos & Advaces to Relaved Partict penzin 03

Sulnidiary Companies {Compideced Cooid)

Tengal Anmo! South Gy Tafessnuctuce 124
South Ciry Mawix Infesstmuctae Lid

South ity bnceantionsd School

AA lofmpropertes Prt. Ll

2385.02 268599 208251 - - -
13468 1428 133.98 . ] .
o307 095.85 1361 ; . .

64142 - 1907035 . . -
6194 61911 6mM . . .

100,00 150.00

South City Projects (Kolkata) Lia.

South City Prolmw
.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

Naotes 1o Fingncisl Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2018

Mamw 5.4 = Ochier Financial Assets

Taterest Receivables

Advances ro relited pastics (Refes Note 29) *
Debt Sexvice Resetve Accauat™®

‘Total Other Financial Asscts

* Advances to Relared Pantics perain to:

Cin Lacs
Non-Current Current
Asxt Asml Aot As sy As i Avay
31.03.2013 032017 0L.04.2016 L0308 SLaro8n L2015
5568 60.73 - 994 15.11 96.96
1,204.06 1,204.06 1,204 .08 16837 29333 45.01
44000 44000 44000 - . .
__L699.74 ﬁ'ﬂ ﬂ_ 17831 £14.44 14197
1,204.06 120406 1,204.06 - - -
. - - 2001 70.00 -
- . - 0.37 027 -
. . . 14159 22306 B4
. - - - - 9.84

™ 1t represcnts mdngin money in Avows of Axis Bank for Teom Loan availed

South City Projacts (Kolkata) Lia.
N-‘.*’-"_—“
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-

Director
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended et March, 2018

VinLacs
Note 6.3 - Curreat Tax Assets (Net) Balance Shegt
Asat As at As at
31.03.2018 31032017 0L04.2016
Torl of Cuyrenr Tax Assers 1075.34 82089 74294
Less : Tord of Curcent Tax Liabilitics 79.13 565.73 18692
Total 956.21 264,16 456.02
Noie 6.2 - Deferred Tax Asoets & Liabilitics (Nes)
LinLacs
- As As
Nature - (liabifity) / assct e s ouesans
Deferced Tax Liahilities
Amortisation of Upfront fees on Loans on 2099 44.98
Fair valuation of Equity Shascy 21.60 1264 9.86
Fair valvation of Mumadl funds 1913.88 1285.53 S04.17
Taral {A) 1935.70 1319.16 559,01
Deferred Tax Asscts
Axiging out of tempasacy differertces in depreciable asscts 36.58 30.35 2883
On expenses allowable against taxable income in future years
- Provision for Gratuity 45.88 2095 24.14
« Provizion for Leave Encashment 59.59 21.06 14.28
« Muricipat Tax 330.00 31.55 117
- Others through OC) 228 220 -
Tomwl (B) M43 114,12 68.12
Nt Defesred Tax (Linbilitioe)/Assets (B-A) {1,400.27) _(1,205.04) (590.89)
¥in Lacs
Asm Asat

The reconcillation of eatimated incoms tax expenscyd at statutory income tox rate

to income tax expenses reposted in staicment of Profit & Lods is as follows ¢

Accounting Profit Before Income Tax
Indian stinmory Income Tax rate (%)

31032018 M.03.2017

13247 9,639.58
34.508% M.508%

Expected Income Tax Expenses 73801 333607
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile cxpected income ax expenses to reported

intome tax expenscs:

Income exempt from income taxcs (0412 (663.43)
Additiona) allowsnces / deduction 6127 37495
Impact of diffcrentia tax rate (4376T) (549.77)
Impact due to diffcrent head of income L E (806.33)
Penmanent differcrces 78.88 1051
Dreferred Tax {soc note above} 198.51 61633
Tow! Income Tax Expenses f12.32 516.35

Effective Tax Ratc

—
38.00% 24.03%

South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.  South Clty Projects ta) Ltd.
- ‘-"-'—-l--—-‘:-.-""'-‘l
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SOUTE CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Pinancial Statements for the year ended 31at Musch, 2013

Note 7 - Other Agseta

Capital Advasces
Advances ather than capital advances
Advances for Projecrs, Expenacs ctc.

Joint Development Agrecment
Balanee with Government Authoritics
Prepaid Expentes

Other Advances

Towml Other Asscte

Note 8 - Iuventories
(Lower of cast or net realisable value)

Raw Marerials & Coasumabics
Construction Work - in - progress

Finished Goods

Total inventorics

Note 9.1 - Cash wud Cash Equivalents

Balances with banks:
= O curent aceaunes

¥inLaco
Non-Cumrent Cusrent
Asat As ot Agat Asat Asat Asat
3103088 31.03.2017 0L04.20%6 31032018 3L0%2017 0L04.2016
279.90 221.89 . - -

25236 31705 2271270

2B 360N38 334468 - . -

27,79 29488 2092
1,010.69 2827 290

7489 T304 206.27 10837 122 62506
4§ 45141 39943 31.550.95 g.zn 49741 éﬁﬂm
Yinlacs
As at As ot Agat
31.03.2018 31032017 0L04.2015
¢06.27 24017 - .
4,375.54 631338 . 137299 -
11,296.47 15,5720 977035 1608373 _ 1376148  21,134.87
955.79 065.59 - 101.54
B, ;728 AT
LinLacs
Corrent
Arat Asat Asat

~Deposits with original maturity of toss than threa months

Cash in hasd

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Nate 9.2 - Onbier Bank Balances

Term Deposits with maturity of more than theoe moaths but

less than twelve months

Teta] Other Bank Dalances

South City Projects (Kolkata) Ltd.
—5_&”_&.'—-‘&

Pirsetnr

3103.2018 31.03.2017 OLO4NIS

6546 62055 arioa
027 025 0.23
5.07 789 700

7080 628.69 38516
TinLaca
Curremt
Asat At Aamt
31032018 3L032017 01042016

055 052 0.48
- [ 3 0.52 048
South City Projects w
o
Diractor



SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Finanelal Statements for the year ended st March, 2018

Note - 10 - Equity Skare Cagital

Tin Lacs
Az at Asat Azt
3M-Mar2018  31-Man2017  O03-Aprd016
Authosised Capitat
50,00,000 Equity Shases of Ra. 10 esch 500.00 S500.00 500.00
Iesucd, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
45,00,700 Equity Shares of Ra. 10 cach fully paid vp in cash 45007 450.07 450.07

Tatal Equity Share Capltal 250.07 45007 450.07

a) The Reconciliation of Share Capitalis given belows

As a1 31.05.2018 As a1 31.05.2017 As 3101042016
No. of Shares Tin Lacs No. of Shares LinLacs No.ofShares  ¥inLacs
At the beginning of the year 4,500,700 45007 4,500,700 4007 4,500,700 45007
Iesused ducing the Year . . - ) . )
At the ond of the year 4,500,700 450.07 4,500,700 450.07 4,5007%9 450.07

b} Terma/Rigiue attached to class of shares

The Company hes cnly one claas of Equity Shases having a pat value of Re 10 cach. Helder of esch Equity Shace is catitted to one vote per share. The Campany
declares and pays dividends i Indian repecs. In tie event of Equidation of the Company, the holders of equity shases will be cntilled o cecoive remaining sssots of
the Corpany, after Sxribution of all preferential amounts. The distibution will be in propomion @ the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders,

) Details of Skarcholders helding rrore than 5 percens of Equity Sharcs in the Company

As o JLO3.2018 As at 33.03.2017 As a1 01.04.2015
No.ofShares % holding No.efShares % holding  No. of Shares % holding
Shrachi Developers Pyt Led 45001 1000% 45001 10.00% 450071 10.00%
Pack Chambees Lid 425105  945% 425105  945% 425105  S45%
Aeziin Peojoers Lid 350955  8.69% 390955  B49% 390955  B&YH
Jugal Kishare Khetawat 36334 B8N 3634 3% 38634  858%
Juga! Kishore Khenwat <Truatee of Kheawat Family Welfare 32633 1.4% 326335 18% 3% 15%
Vinagak Deaters () 1.4d 22000  640% 202000 4% 2000 54%%
Pan Emami Cosmed Led 542058  5465% 34225  565% 54225  565%

Ag per ceeonds of the Campany, including its sogiates of sharcholdess/members and ather dechimtions recrived from sharcholden reganding bencfcial interest, the
shove sherchelding mpresents bodh legal aid benefici) ownership of shares

South City Projects (Kolkata) Lta. South City Projects (w
= ~—— s._.;..'..._:..\ Rt
Director Nlractor




SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3tst March, 2018

Note - 11 - Other equity

Rin Lacs
As at As at Asat
3032018 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Reserves & Surplus
Securities Premium Account §60.00 660.00 660.00
Retained carnings 17,649.99 1935874 1203551
General Reserve 20,000.00 2000000 2000000
Other Comprehensive Income
= W 10OCT reserve {not of tax) {B844) {4.14) .

Tota! ather equity 33,301.53 40,014.50 32,695.51

Securities Premium Account. Premium received on cquity shares issucd ace recognised in the securitics premium acoount

Geaeral Reserve - Under the crstwhile Indian Companics Act 1956, 3 geacrsl seserve was crested through an annual transfer of aer
fncome at 2 specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulztons, to ensure that if & dividend distrilsution in & given year is
srore than 0% of the paid capital of the Company for that yeas, the 112l dividend distribution is less than the tomd distrbutsble results
for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companics Act 2013, the requisement to mandatordly wransfer a specified percentage of the
oct profit to gencral ecserve has boen withdrawn,

Retained Eamings - Retained earnings indudes surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Ind-AS relared adjustments as ea the dete
of teensitinn, remeasurement gains/ Yosses on defined benefit obligations,

FVTOCI Reserve - Net gain/{oss) on remeasurement of defined benefit Lishilty compising of acturial gain and losscs and
seturn on pln asscts (excluding interest incomc).

Soulh City Projects ala }
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KROLKATA) LIMITED
Notes 10 Pinancial Statesnents for the year ended 31t March, 2018

Note 121 - Borrowings Rin Lacs
Asar As at Asat
M=Mae-2018 3-Mar-2017 01-Apr-2016
Non-Cument Borcowings
Sccured
Tomm Loans érom Banks (A) 4,269.55 1274949 1517911
Long Term Matusitizs of Finance J.case Obligntions (C) 17.28 717 9235
Total Non Cucrent Borrowings 3,236.88 12,986.66 15,188.46
Bomowing included in Giber Financial Linbilitics
Current Barrowing
Secured
Loans from Other Partics 14,700.00 12,700L60 6,450.00
Bank Overdmfc 843443 214221 2,306.54
Warking Capital Loan - 1,500.00 .
XY T
Unsecured
From Body Corporate 3,310.00 3,550.00 3,150.00
From Directors 100.00 850,00 503.00
From Related Paztics - - 950.00
“Iemporary Bank Overdrafc 415558 419,17 n2
7,565.58 281917 3636.2
“Total Cusrent Borrowings 30,700.01 2L,76138 15,392.76_
Cument matusities of long-tesm bosrowings from Bank (B) 13,927.87 523696 491563
Current matusitics of finance lesse obligations (D) 5o 218 815
Tota) Bosrowing included in Other Financial Listifitics * B,952.54 520 423,78
Aggregate of Term Loan from Bank (A +B) 18,19743 1798645 200%4.74
Aggregate of Financial Lease Qbligation (C + I 7215 9.35 17.50
* Refer Note 122
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLEKATA) LIMITED

Notes oo Finsuchal Statemsents a2 at and for the year eaded 3lot March'2018 3

Teres &k Cosdirfons
r i I '
' et | €T | Comemt | Camemt |NoaCument,Nou Cument | Non Cument ;
Portionof | Portionof | Portfonof | Pomionnof | Portionof | Fortdooalf Intecest  Instaloseat
w:mw“ Loanages | Lesuasoa | Losnseon | Loanssca | Loansson | Leangaon | (pa.batk) | Amount $ecuslyy Provided v svall Lomn
31032016 31.05.201% IJLO3.2015 31032018 JL03.2017 31.03.2015
| Rinlaco | Tinlaos | Tinlocs | ¥ialacs | Rinlacs | VUinlaes ¥in Lace
{2} Tern Loans From Banks
1) Grourd Fioor m 13th floorof
{South City "Firnacls” sinasted 31
KMCIR S Plot No. X1, Block EP, Sector V,
Kousk Bank M2, L2760 16333 4209560 300408 3AMIN | omnibsic 11214 [SétLake, Kolkaa - 700091.
i X \ : \ | Bes% 2) Municipal Premises No. 2, Justice,
X ; (Chandra Madhar fRoad,
1 B i - 100020, PS5,
Bhowanipoet in the Disgier 24
Pysganis ).
I.Fuwwbywofl
il mosgsge over the !
poopenty {entine build up arca in the
Mafl which is owned by SCPKL) to
|be shased anly with the SBLC
fueility 0f 275 erocs provided by
. Base Rare Unequad |y hanl:
Axis Rank L TB0.45 1936 . 772546 11,744,590
%780 40 e plus 1:25% I Tostalments |2, o charge oves the cash fows
! of the peopeity
! lmwmﬂnw'
Actonant & DSRAAIZ
| I.E'npaﬁpamdmbymol’
Equitable Mortgage over the
. propenty, to be shared only with the
. . . . . MCLR SBLC/TL. Fecitities already avaited
Asis Baak 348 phus 120% foom Auis Bank L.
2. Pirst pari passu charge over tho
oash flows of the Mall
TOTAL ) | 197787| 523656 491563 | 420056| Bawds| ssuma
@) Fizance Leass OF
HDFC Bask 258 218 ais 1202 7 935| o ' 044 Hpobecaton ofCetadePolo
Toyon e ‘ . . |
Fioancial | 109 - - 32 -- - T1.50% | 0.3 |Hypothocation of Erios Vehicle. i
{TOTAL ) | 807 218 | [T} 7.2 | 737 935 ) |
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes o Financial Satements for tre year ended et March, 2018

Note 12.2 - Other Fipancial Liabilitics TinLacs
Non-Current Curment
Asae Asat As at Asat Asat Asat
3032018 31.03.2017 02.04.2016 31.032018 31032017  01.04.2016

Security Deposits Received 253,57 1,83641 4022 41 2,186.47 678.41 96.14
Current matusitios of tong-teem borrowings - - - 13,921.87 521696 4915.63
Cursent matwsitics of ficance kase obligations - - - 507 218 815
Refundable Deposits ainst Expired Lease - . - - 74497 -
Interest accrucd but not due on borrowings - - - 838 1202 1215
Intcrest acenied and due on borrowings - - . 167.23 191.13 195.83
OCthers * - - . 544,46 610.84 42370
Total Other Financial Liabilitics

* Inchedes Re, NiL (2016-17 -Rs. 3.35 lakhs, 2015-16 - s, KIL) payable to Subsldtary - South City Covelopars Pvt. Lid,

Note 13- Provisions Cin Laca
Nog-Cursent Cusrent _
As Asat At Asat Asat As ot
3032018 31032017 0L042016  3L032008 31032017  DL.04.2016
Provision for carployece besefits
- Peovision for gratity (Refer Note 30) 102.47 65.93 57.07 3670 24.00 1268
- Provision for leave encashment (Refer Note 20) 138.64 49.33 36,56 3353 1.5 4n
411 113.24 93.63 70.23 35,62 17,39
Note 14. Trade Payubles
_ Linlacs
Asat Az at Asm
1032008 31032017  01.04.2016
‘Frade Payables
- Towl outstanding duce of Micro & Small linterpriscs - . .
{Scc Note below)
- Tatel outstanding duca of creditors other than Micro &
Small Eterpriscs 4,393.01 560420 323588

Note : There are no Micro, Small and Medium  Enterprisces, to whom the company owes ducs which are cutstanding for more than 45
days during the year. This information 23 roquiced 1o be disclosed under the Micro, Smell and Medium Entecprise Development Act,
2006 a8 been detesmined to the extent suth pasties have been identificd on the basiz of information avadabls with the company.

South City Projects (Kolkala) ud. Scuth City Projecis (I&
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Finaneial Statementts for the yenr ended 315t March, 2018

Note 15, Other Current Liahilitcs TinLacs
As gt As at Ag mt
31033018 31.03.2017 0L04.2016
Advances fenm Customers 1,582.29 1,270,664 13,721.51
Othere
Stztutory ducs 1505.67 336.06 37246
Tomwl other current Liabilides 2,887.97 1,514.72
Note 16 - Distribution of Dividend
inLacs
Asat Asat
31.03.2018 31..03.2017
Dividends on Equity Shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017- Ry, 55.00 per 2,475.39 .
share (Lst April 2016 - Rs. N2 per share)
DT on Gral dividend 499.61 .
ém.oz .
South City Projests {Kolkata} Lia. South City Projects {Kokata) Lia.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Finaneial Statements for the year eaded 31st Maech, 2018

Naue 17.1 - Financial Assers

Finuncial Assets ~ Non Corrent
A Amortised Cost

) Towde Receavably

) {arms

{c; ¢ iher friancd asan

et { iy
Investimoenes

At Uajr Value thyotysds I‘I"l‘ii oof Joags

Investmients
Towl Non Current Finuncial Assets (a)

Financial Assets - Current

Ar vimocnsed cos

) Trade Revewvables

(b Cash ek Cashi Baguivadents

() Bank Balancvs other tan fhy abuve
o} Levans

e} Oxther Fianomd Vesers

Toral Curcent Financial Assets (b)
Total Fiaancial Aszcis (o + b)

Note 7.2 - Financial Linkilities

Financia! Liabilitics - Non Cusrent

S Azl Cost
{2) Horrowings
(B Other Finaneial Laabilitees

Taral Mon Current Finaneinl Linbilities (u)
Finuncial Liabilities - Current

A nariised Ce

(1) Borowings

(1) Tracde payablex

{¢) Onher Fawineind Lialvilices

‘Total Current Financial Liabilitics (b)

Totl Finunciat Liabilitics {a + b)

*

e

Tin Lacs
As al As ot Asat
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2H6
169 364.72 126,82
1201883 37BLIB 2235392
1,699.74 1.704.70 164,06
13,929.16 5,853.60 24,424.80
270630 2.506.29 2771413
30382095 060122 16.170.13
56,018.41 48,253,20 43,366.06
1104l 2858.09 T#1.54
080 G28.69 IR 16
0.33 052 .48
| 400,20 A 906446 1.812.2°
178.31 7 1409~
2,149.96 #,367.80 3,121.42
58,768,317 57,121.00 46,487.48
¢in Lacs
As wt As at Asa
11.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
4.286.84 12.756.66 13.188.46
2523137 1.836.41 10224
6.860.21 14.593.07 19210187
30,700.m0 21.761.38 13,3927
4,303.00 3.4001,29 323088
16,8348 747651 3651.61
51.932.19 3184218 222681.25
58,742.71 49.435,25 1}__,592.1’2

South City Projects (Kolkata) Lia.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLKATA) LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Note 18 - Revenue from Operations

Sale of Producte

Reverue from Land & Constructed Propertics
Sale of Services

Remtal Income

Maintenance Services
Other Operating Revenue

Total

Income form Financial Avscts
[nterest Income
From Customers
From Loans
From Deposits
From Others
Dividend Income on Investments

Other Non Operating Income
Net Gain on Sale of Investments
Pair Value Change of Investents messurcd &t FYIT,

Guzrantee Commission (From Subsldiary Company)
Envercst - Sale of Land
Miscelaneous lacome

Total

Note 20 - Censtruction Cost

Salacics, Wages & Bonus
Contsibution to Provident & Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Powes & Fucd
Repais
Oihers
Insurance
Rates & Taxcs

Lapd

Materials Consumed

Consteaction Expenses

Payment sgeinst Suevender of Tenaney
Consultancy & Retainesship Charges

Finanee Costs

Total

South City Proiecis (Kalkala) Lid.

- ¥
Am————

f‘i“‘!- cn"."l'.

¥ in Lacs

201718 20t6-17
307086 15,838.64
40534 79N.35
1,505.88 197558
17 6337
8,69212  25,048.84
Tinlace

2017-18 2016-17
272 201
103216 216654
as2 8]
338 14
2468 8.87
17.2 10623
250077 2.200,63
3492 213.03

183119 .
100.81 145.66
M
tinlscs

718 W016-11
131.98 1252
4.69 456
0.35 a1
2186 125
11.60 266
6.52 666
(1 X1] €0.04
13N 40.39
511.84 134018
103622 240593
- 411876
141.38 188.45
3847 33450
042 720

— 193025 81827

South City Projects (w
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLREATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Note 21 - (Increase)/Ddecrease in Inventozies of Finished Goods and Construction Work-in-Process

Tin Lace
2017-18 201617
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 955,79 965.59
Construction Work «in-progress
Lazd 437554 5312.38
Others 120647 1567201 9,770.35 16,083.73
Tosml (A) gm 11&
QOpening Stock
Finished Goods ©65.59 101.54
Construction Work -in-progress
Land 631338 737299
Others 977035 13,761.88 21,134.87
16,083.73
Less: Transitional Isput Credit under GST 23.13 16,050.60
Toul (B) LT — B
Total (A~ B) 39739 4,187.09
| -+ — ] | ————— = ——— |

Seully City Fremnts toliaw) VL South City Peojacis ta) Lid.
Q-———hé—"_--—"
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financia! Statements for the year ended 3st March, 2018

Note 22 - Employec Bencfit Expenses

Lin Laca
2017-18 201617
Salacies and Wages 671.68 417.55
Contribution ro Provident and Oher Funds (Refer Note 30) 3763 2307
Staff Welfare Ezpenscs 2.£0 27.25
Tow! T
— ]

Note 23 - Finance Costs

¥inLacs
2017-18 2016-17
Interest Expense 365141 3Ne
Other Borrowing Cost 4. 168.16
Total 3,655.62 3,886.37
Note 24 - Depreciation and Amenisation Expense
LioLacs
2017-18 Y]
Deprecistion of Tanpible Asicts (Note d) 977.51 1,105.70
Amortisation of Intangible Asscts Note 4) 5.34 5.68
Totzl 982.35 L1138
Note 25 - Other Expenses
PinLace
2017-18 201617
Power & Fucl 61940 8043
Repaira:
- Building .58 17
- Others 12002 982
- Maintenance 26831 2288
House Kerping Charges 219 a1.1
Security Charges 20098 2178
Inmanance M50 22
Rates & Taxcs 1,714.93 58740
Legel & Professional 6 22565 190.16
Dircctor’s Remnncmtion 300 19.09
Corponate Social Respoasibility Expenscs (*refer note below) 2.8 49.52
Loz on Disoard of Fixed Asscts %10 -
Miscollateous Expeases 24080 219.14
Total 4,£09.30 2,685.52

*Carporate Socil Responsiblity expensed Rs. 223.83 Lacs (2016-17: Re. 49.52 Lacs) includes Company’s ovm

programme for promoting employment enhancing vocational sldl] programme aamed T rain’

South City Projects {Kolkata) Ltd. South City Projects w
e
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SOUTH CLTY PROJECTS (ROLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Finaacial Statements for the year ended 3181 March, 2018

Note 26.1 - Auditor's Remuneration
As Anditor:

Audit fees

Tax sudis fee

Other Macters
Toral

Note 26.2 - Details of CSR expenditure:

2) Gross amount requiced to be speat by the company during the year
{b} Amount speat during the yean

Construction/ Acquisdon of an asset

Purposes other than above
Total

Note 27 - Barings Per Sharc (EPS)

€in Lacs
201718 2016-17
4,50 128
.50 030
1.94 025
6.94 LBO
f——
TinLacs
2017-18 2016-17
142346 107.34
Rio Lace
2017-18 2016-17
223,83 49.52
223.83 49,52
A

Basic EPS amounts are caloulated by dividing the poofit for the yeas attributable 10 equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares cutsandiag during the yeac.
Diluted EPS amouats are calculated by dividing the profit ardbumble to equity holdess of the Company by

the weighted avemsge aumber of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number
of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shaces into equity

shazes.

The following reflects the income and shace data used in the basie and diluted EPS computations:

Net Profit for caleulation of Basic and Diluted Eamings Por Share
{in Lakhs)

Weighted average numbes of shaces (Nos.)
Earning per equity share

Basic & Diluted earning per share (in Rs.)

South City Prejects (Kofimtz) 1 i

LS

Nirecinr

R in Laca
2017-18 2016=-17

1,266.27 732323
4,500,100 4,500,700

28.14 16271
South City Projecis {Ii&saw; v,
e
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Nates to Financial Statements for the year ended 3151 March, 2013

Note 28 - Significant accounting judgements, estimartes and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial sarements wquing manzgement to make judgements, catimates and astumptions
thr affece the reported amounes of sevenucs, cupanses, assety and Eabilities, and the accompanying disclosuses, snd the
disclosure of contingent Eshiliies. Uncertainty sbout these assumptions and estimares oowld sosult in cutcomes that require a
matecis! adjustment to the camying amount of wscts of isbilities affected in future perinds.

Judgements, Estimatea and asqumptiona

The bey assumptions conceming the fumre snd other key sowsces of estimation uncerainty at the reposting date, thas have o
significant sisk of causing a snaterial adjustment to the carying amaunts of asgers and liskilitios within the next Enencial pesr, o
described below, The Coaipany based s assumptions and estimaies on pammeters available when the Financial Statements
wieee peepared. Dxisring cireumstanees and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
chanpges or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes ase reflected in the atsumptions
when they ooqur In the process of spplying the Company's sccounting policies, managenwent hes made the following
judgements, estimates arul sysumprions, which have the most significent effcer on the smounts eecognised in the Fnancia)
Satemeats.

Defined Employer Benefit plans
The cost ead dhe present value of the defined benekit grrdity phn and other post-employment leave eacashment benefir sre
detenzined using setaria) valustians. An actuirial valuation bovolves nukiog virous ssnanptions that may differ from semsd
devclopments in futare. These inchade the determination of appropriate discount rate, estimating fuure salacy incoeases and
macahty ratcs. Due ro the complexisies invelved in the valuation and ies long-term niature, 3 defined benefit obligation & highly
sensitive to changm in these assumptions. All aesumptions am reviewed at each ropocting date, For furnther demils sefir Note 30,

Fait value measurement of fincacial instruments and guarantees

When che fair values of fnsncil nsscts and financiz] Eshilides moerded in the Balince Shect annot be metsured based on
quoted prices in acrive markets, their fair value is measured using valurtion techniques inchuding the DCF model. The inputs to
these models ore aken from ohservsble macken where possible, but where this is not feasible, 2 dogree of judgement is roquired
in establishing Eiir valucs. Judgements includs considerations of inputs such as Bquidity sisk, credit fisk and volutiliny, Changres in
assumptions about these Ectors cauld affect the scported fair value of Enandal instrumeary.

Depreciation on Propeny, Fluny and Equipment

Property, plant and cquipment repeesent o sipaificant proportion of the assct base of the Company. The charge ia respect of
periodic fation is derived after determining 2n cotimate of an azset’s eapected wichd Life and the cxpected sesidual value o
the ead afies fe, The usefil lives and cesiial vabue of company'y agscts ace detomubied by Murgement st the time the sssct is
apquired and reviewed periodicaliy, including at cach financial year end. The Bves are based on histodical experionce with similer
assctn ap will as andeipation of hstwee cvents, which map impact their L, such as changes in rechnology.

Proviaions and coatingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions anad contingencizs have been made in accondance with the appEcable Ind
AS. A\ provision is recoprited if, 90 3 result of 2 part cvent, the Company has 2 present legal of constructive obligation that ean
be estiruared seliably, 2nd ir is peobable thar a0 qusdlow of ceonomic bonefits will be roquined 1o setile the oblgadon. Wheve the
cffect of ime value of moncy is marcrial, provisions ase doteenined by discountng the cxpocted future cash flows. ‘The
Company hay significant capita) comminments in relztion to vadous capita] projects which are not recogrized on the halinee
sheet,

In the aormal course of business, contingent kabilides may arise from Etigation and other chims against the Company.
Guzracitoes ore also pravided in the nosmal course of business, There are cenain obligations which management has concluded,
based on all avallable facts and circumstances, ase not probable of paymont o are very difficult 1o quantfy reliably, and such
obgations ase treated a9 contingony [nbilities and diselosed in the notes but arc nat reflected as Babfities in che finencisl
staemente. Although these can be no assurance remnding the finsl ourcome of the fugal proceedings in which the Company
invelvel, it is not cxpecredd that such contingencics will have a mateeial effect on its inancial position or profiwkitiy.

Classification of leases

"The Company enters into keasing arangemenss for vasiows assets. The chssificasion of the keasing arrangement as & fnmcoe kase
or operating lease is based on an asscasment of severad factors, Including, but not Bmited to, teansfer of owncrship of leased
assct ot end of lease term, lessees opeion to purchase and estimated certzingy of exercise of such option, proponion of lease
teren to the asset’s coonomic Life, proportion of present value of minimum lease payments to Fir valuo of kessed asset zad extent
of specialized nziure of the lessed assct,

South City Projecis (Kolkata) L. South City Projects ‘Kw&
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes 1o Pinancial Statements for the year ended st March, 2018

Nate 29 - Infenmarion an Joinr Venmre Extitica

Descmmtion ¢ CATAny 8 tRIEnest 1 Lk

Asat Asat Asmt
30L03.2018 31032017 01042015
. Propomtion  Couotryof  Pupoitina.  Cownwyof  Proportion Country of
Nameof the iy ol tuomt  coponticn  ofloect lsomemtion  of kst locorpoanics
Kolkata Metropoliton South City Develapmons Lk 0% India DI fnwdia £IT% lnfia

L. The Company's interests i Joine Ventures koc coparted a5 Financial st - Investments.
z'mtmmyuﬂw;mmmmmwmmm'mmmm' was awarded 440 Aeves of land in a
mewhmww@mmmm)mumdwmmWﬁmmcm
fmamofhIMImmmﬂmwmaﬁmmbﬂmwmﬁMHumwomm betwreen the South City
Mcﬁnmmmm&mhspﬁlm&d&Wmﬂm&KMDAMﬁmmmdepuitothO.GJImonmmimol‘
N(‘JU.Mﬂwmwofuawmbewuiadmmnh&ummhﬁ.ammmmﬁmdhdmmmdmkﬂﬂhka&mﬂwﬁmw
City Developmen: Lad. (KMSCDL) with suthorised share capital of R. 100.00 Lacs, The company hus agreed to subseribe 4,99,700 Equity Sharcs of Re. 107+ cach
wp&gmhﬂ.ﬂ@hdﬁhhﬂmﬂmofﬁﬁﬁmoﬁfmﬁdﬂ@klm.thcmhmd«ﬁpﬁmh\iwdt&.dw
mmwhmmwdmmduawmw. it was found that due to insdvertence from KMDA, crroncow
dmﬁp&mddnhﬁwdmhwnbmmuou.hadawMOUMIMIIMIIwmmd.whminmﬂlmdhudw
mrisedtol.ﬁ'.'MImdwmwmmhmmwmwmmwwﬁtmﬁnﬂdmpﬁm
Kumwﬁm:uwuwdmmmumdmmmwummmmmmdh
dwuHMOUbywdn&tgjuﬁuAMﬂmM)mﬂﬁmm&mKMDAhmdhshﬁwhfmmmﬁdMuwﬁs
WumwﬁmmedemmInmmmﬂudﬁdhmmw
mmpmmﬂwimdwnidmbinﬁmmdmm"mmw&mﬂ&cﬁmlldmm&mmtmtnwmid
qp&:.&muhII.M:.]amhﬁw.Saimmehmbmqwimﬂu&Aﬁmmlnhmvﬁdﬁmdwmwmwﬂm
game it on the verge of completion.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (EOLEATA) LIMITED
Notcs vo Financial Statements for the year ended 31t March, 2018
Note 30 - Ewaployee Beacfits Obligation

(T) Defined Benefit Plsna
The following able summarizes the components of act bencfit capense rocogaised in the Staternent of Profit and los and OCT end amounts
recogaised i the Balance Sheet.

{in Lakhs
— { 2017-18 [ 201517 ]
, Leave Lesve
Particulass l?““"’ Bacashment UG""‘[‘" Encashrent |
| afsaded ' Gafanded nfaded | Vnkinded
(Changes in the present valus of Defined Beaehit ObEgation:
Picscnt vatuc of Defined Benefit Obligation st the begianing of the 9002 6085 075 4127
pe
Cureent Seevice Cosy 1391 2235 1072 0.66
Leteest Cost 457 444 545 323
Past Service Cost 213 - - -
Remcavurcments (or Acturis! (gains)/losses) arising Erom
- Changes in demographic assymptions . . - -
« Changes in finaneisl assumptions 7n 5.03) kY ) k1) )
- Rxpetience varience (ie. Actual experience vi sssumptions) 9.36' 954 an 115
« Others - - - -
(Benefits Paid (1.2 (6.18) —225) (6.50)
IPresent value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the 139.47 m.nrj $0.02

(period

Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheer .
.Prescnz value of deficed benefit obligaticn ar the year end . 139,17 17217 ! 90.02
[{as 26 O1.04.2016 Greasuity 69,75 bacs & Lease Bacmshment 41.27 bes)
(Fair Value of the Plan Asscts st ths pear end - . -
L@ummmcnlﬂy_nummeamm

60.85

60.85

/! in the Balance Sheet 139.47 ey 5002 60.85 |
Bxpense recoguised in the Statemnent of Proffe and Loss:

23 172 8.66

o

Current Sorvice Cost 13

Poat Serviee Cane a3 - -
Remeasurements {or Actuckal {gains)/losses) arlsing from:

- Changes in fisancisl assumptions . 503 .

» Byperience varicnce (e Achn) expericace v¢ asgitpiions) - 95.74 - 1115
[Net Interest Cost/(Income) 657 444 545 L)
iNet Cost Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 13 W50 16.17 | m'
|Expense recopnived in the Other Camprchensive Incomet II
iRemeasurements (faing) losses ' 658 - 635 - l
Net Coat Recogpised in Other Comprehensive Income i 658 - .
{Financia) Assumptions ; ! I
:Discount Rate 1.60% T.60%, 130% 730%
ySalary Growds Rate (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%) 8.00% am|
Demographic 1 |
|Mnmﬁry Rate (% of JALM 06-08) 100% 10054 100% 100%,
Normal Retirement Age (yre) 8 Sj 8 58
Auvriting Rates, based ca ape 2% 2% 2% %

T‘hcuﬁmawoffummnhtyhmmmﬁdmdhmnﬁnmbmnhmnlofhmm,pmmmm
factors, such &3 supply and demand in the esnployment macket.
Ampﬁmunprdﬁ:gﬁ:mmmﬁtyupeﬁmmuthtmdmwew&hthpubhhnd;uduﬁubydwljfe]mm&cpmﬁonnf
India.

The discount raic s based cn the govermmenr securitics yicld.
mwmmwmmmh@mm-ofmmmumum
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Naotes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3lst Masch, 2018
Note 30 - Employee Benefits Obligation (Comd.)

A quaminative seasitivity aaalysis for significant assumption is shown below

_ € in Lakhs
Gratuity
As 3¢ 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

Decrease Tnerease Decresse | Increass |

Discount Rate {~ / + 1%) 151.58 128,55 97.94 8128
% change compared to base duo o sensitivity a91% 263% 880% T4%%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 13124 14804 85.33 94.75
% change comparcd 1o base duc to sensflivity -8.70% 637% -5.20% 5.26%
Attrition Rate (- / + 50%) 13777 140.35 89.03 90.86
% change compared to base duc to sensldvity 101% 0.85% -1.10% 0.94%
Mostality Rate (- / + 109} 138.68 13945 | 89.80 90.23 |
% change compared to base due 10 sensiivity L21%,  020%: -24.00%; 0.23%:
Asar3003.2018 T Asm31032017 |
Dieerease Increase Decrmsc Incrcase

Discount Raee (- / 4+ 1%) 189.97 157.05 67.5¢ 55.23
% chauge compared (o base duc to sensitivity 10.34%j B77% 10.99% 9.24%
Salagy Growth Rate -/ + 1%) 156.11 15063 55.31 1.3
% chaage compared 1o base dus ta sensitivity 033% 10.84% 211% 10.61%
Avritinn Rae (- / + 50%) 17277 171.65 6.z 605
% change compared to base duc to sensitivity 0.35% -0.31% 0.61%) £.53%
Mormality Ratc (= / + 10%) 1722 17208 9 £0.79
% changs compared to base duc o scosithvity 0.06%, -0.06% 0.10% -0.10%

Scnsitivity for significant acruarial assumptions is computed by varying one senuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit
mwmmmmmmmammmmmmwmofmmwammaw
sensitivity analysis did not change campared to the prior period.

(iti) Risk Exposure

Vﬂuaﬁommpuﬁmdmmuiubasicmdpmdmﬁmdummmimudmhumhm feamewark which omy vary overtime, Thus,
the Comypny is expased ro vasious sisks in providing the sbove granuily benefit which are as fullows:

Interest Rate risk ¢ The plan exposcs the Company to the risk of Gl in interest ratcs. A fl in intosest sates will result i an incroase fn the
uhimate ¢ost of providing the abiove benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the Tisbility (as showa in financial stazcmcats).
Liquidity Risk : This is the sisk that the Company is nat able to mect the short-erm grawity payouts, This may atise due to non-availibiliy of
cnough eash / cash equivalent w0 meet the tiabilitics or holding of Miquid assets aot being sold in ime.

Sakuy Eecalation Risk : The prescnt value of vhe defined beaefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salasy increase rate of plan
pasticipants in future. Deviation in the s of increase of salary in future for plan pasticipants feom the rate of increase in salary used 1o
deteeming the

present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liabiliry.
Dmngnphicthzm&mpuyhasmndmhmmﬁtymdmﬁdmamptimsinvalmﬁonofdwl’nbﬂity.TbcCompanyiuzpmd
to the risk of schual experience tming out 1o be ware compared to the sssumption.
Reguhwﬂisk:ﬁnmitybmcﬂtispaidiumrdancewiﬂldwmquimnmoﬁbel'aynwamfcnudtyda.t% amended from Bme
10 timc). Theee is & risk of change o regulations requiring higher geatuity payouts {e.g. Increasc in the maximum Fmit an gratity of Ry
20,00,000).
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for tke year ended 3lat March, 2018

Note 31~ Leases.

Operatdng Lease — Company as Lessar
“T'hc Company has given Mall premises and IT Park on operating lease 1o Jessec. The Company enters into 3 - 15 years cancellable lease
agrecments. Minimum lease payments receivable in cespect of these leases for non-caccellsble period a1e as follows.

Tin Lace
Particulars As at Asat Asat
31032018  3L03.2017 01.04.2016
Within one year 6,248.52 298.19 91.03
After onc year but not more chan five yeass 10,283.34 54.64 353.03
16,536.86 35303 744.06
—
Notc 32 Commitment and Contingencies
% Commitments
LinLacs
As at Asat Asat
3103208 31032017 01.04.2016
a) Estimated amount of contrects remaining 10 be cxccuted on 1,184.52 1,682.25 201502
capital expendinre and got provided for {net of advanced)
b. Cemingent Liabilities
Claims againge the Company not acknowledged as debs:
¥in Lacs
Asat Asst Aawe
31032008 31052017  OLO42016
Scrvice Tax Demands (Net of Advances) 100145 1,817.06 1817.06
Employees State Insucance Demands (Net of Advanccs) 9.62 952 9.62
Tncome Taz - 6418 €94.18
Othees 9139 . -
Total M’“

‘The Company has been advised by its lawyers that aone of the claims aee cenahle and is therefore contesting the sme and heace
has not been provided for in the books. The future cash flows on account of the above canaot be deccrmined unless the
judgements/decisions arc reoeived from the ulimate judicial forums, No seimbuarsements is cxpected 10 arise to the Company in

wpwect of above cascs.

Tin Lacs
Asar Asst Asat
3032018 31032017 01042016
< Guarantees given

Against Loans eaken by a Subsidiary 3964113 3525450 1355070
Against Sales ax 5184 10281 N2
Others 65274 557.12 557.12
Total il 914.43 14,582.04

South Gity Projecs (Kolkata) Lic,  S0uth City Projects {fojata) Jtd,
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

Netes e Financial Sratements for the year cnded 31s1 March, 2018
Note 33 - Disclosure in respect of Related Parties pursuant to Ind AS 24
List of Releted Parties

1. Parentand Subsidiary Companics:

Name of related partics Nature of relaticnship Y of Holding
SU South O Projeers 1714 Subsidiary 100.00%
M2 south O Mareix [afeastructure i # Subsidiary 99.65%
M3 South Cine Property Management Privare [id, Subsidiary 100.00%
w4 South Cine Developers Peivare 1ad. Subsidiary 98.00%
B3 Routh Cine bcernational School Subsidiary 51.00%
6. South Ciry Retrear Pry perty Management Private L, Subsidiary TO0.00 %
< i aoprtes Prvare Led, Subwsidiary 87.50%
08. Bengid Ammol Sourh City Infrastrucruce 1.4, Subsidiary 61.95%,
O AN Tk (AMiddle last) Lad, Step Down Subsidiary 87.50%
102 Tnfra Properties {Jafea) 1, Step Down Subsidiary 87.50%
1. ndocenn Developers (Pavare) L. Step Down Subsidiary 87.50%

IL. Other related parties with whom trapsactions have 1aken place during the year:

a) Joint Venture of the Company
Name of related parties Nature of relationship s of Holding

1. Kolkata Mctropolian South City Development i, Joint ¥enture of the Company 49.97%

b} Key Managemem Persannel

Name of ol prreries Nature of relationship
Shoi Shrawan Kumuar Ted; + Non - Executive Director
St Priclerp Kumar Sureka * Non - Exceutive Direetor
Shri Rajenden Kumar Bachhawat Non - Executive Direcror
Shri Ravi "Jadi - Non - Exccutive Dirceror
Shri Sushi) Kumar Mohra Non - Exceutive Direcior
Sha Tan Mohan Afarda Independent Direetor
Shr Ram Krishpa Aganval Indiependent Dirceor
Shar Jugal Kishore Khemwat Non - Executive Direetor
Shri Parimal Ajmera Company Secretary

Shri Nikhil Chandea Das Vice President - Projeets
Shoi Man Mohan Bagrec Vice President

“ ceased wae £ 9th Seprember 2016
7 appointed wee. £ 30th September 2016

v} Lootes wheee hey Management Personnel & their relatives have significant influence with whom transactions have taken
place during the year
i} South City Garden Property Management Private [t

iy South Cine Belaie Property Management Private Tid.

fi} Khemwar Towers Private 1.ed.

v} Khetawar Family Welfare Trust
vi Kherawat Properties Led,
o e Al it Pagk Ly
v Ciroove Traders Pvr, [,
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SOUTH CITY FROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED

o), Traosactions o X i Locs
Entiiien where Koy Manzpement
Pardeutars Subsidiariza Joint Vemnce Key Munsgerocnt Personne] Personned end diveds relstives hxwe “Toud
slgnificant infinence
30318 | duoaay | onodds | desms | Sae3a7 | oLOLIE | JLanis | 30337 | onoars | stovis | Leday | eiedis | sLoaas EIT X 0816
Fes - S . - - 300 0 . ) T )
_n Son & Commi - _ - | sm| sz . . . 17.88 9899 " on
of Seeviees wn|  es| 12| S . . . FEr] 2543 .12
Tnvestanent ) - 66 010 . - - - - _ s 0.8
Lo Given somer| 217648 maor]| - - . . 295467 217548 S18.57
|roxa Received o . - - 98.00| __apr200] 255000 . . 40,00 L198.00 4,2712.00 2,650.00
_bbgnmm—.nw 2289 mwmn 5573 - 457 52 . 006 - 20362 | PN LS
— . L Ased - z - : = L B L%
- . . - . - - - - 1L66
- - - 450 2170 2153 .50 anl  n
i sl - . . - - . nL
. - 23190 soop|  sta00 219 | .00 31500
: - L4 o1d on 024 2.5 Ed
. 1500] 1549 - 4L 1s1se | 286229
LYY 5263 1297 7044 3589 £2.01 1msm 11852
- . 5000 - 1278.57 2,.217.52 358248
- sE00]  37200| 234800 . - 10500 t800] ammme 245000
354 M4 ROC 1200 0.06 - 30359 5% BnAH
. . 50700 14140 - .00 U188 -
- - . . - | .75 1258 2.5
I . - - - - __an
. - _ . - - o
N . - 18L1LED 2130280 1335179
= - - 0000 | 1000 sa00| 18238 348154 22,10548
oaoo| asaoo| sauw - 100.00 £50.30 50300 |
20006 | 120406) - . . . L4046 LANEE]  1,20406
- . . 295 W00 Y 931 181 253
. - - . .o . -
1281 I 1135 Y s 2 1,001.53 LisGAL|  eesazs)
o) 19.44 1983 - - 2700 B4 19.53
| - 3e810]  ackso - 365.10 462.50
. . . . s s sP.
- _- i 501 3833450 95070

i
E
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (ROLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3lat March, 2018

Note 34 - Fair Value Hieeaschy

&)

@

The table shown below analyscs financisl instruments carried ar fais value, The differcnt levels have been defined belowr-

Level 1: Quoted Prices (unadjusted) in active marsets for identical assees oc ablides.

Level 2 Iuputs other than quoted prioss inchuded within Level 3 that are abscrvable fos the assct ar labifiry, either directy Ge. 23

prices} or indivectly {ie., derived from prices)

Tevel 3 Inpurs fos the asset or Liability that are ot based oa abservable market data {unobscrvable inputs)

Financis] Assets and Lisbilitics measurcd at Pair Value st 31 March 2018

TinLacs

Levell | Level2 | Leved3 | Total
Financial Asscts . :
Tnvestment at FVIPL,
| In Debentuems - - - -
i In Quoted units of Mumal funds 9,177.74 - - 39,177.74
In Quoted Fquity Shascs 8831 - - 5331
anuowdSlmmlhmglll’MS 1’ocl Acoount $16.90 - - 11690
Pinancial Asscts and Liabiflides measused at Falr Valuz at 31 March 2017
Levell Level2 | Level3 Tozal
Financial Assets
Investinenst at FVITL
1 In Debontures _ - - - -
in Quoted units of Mutual funds 3946213 - N Y30
In Quoted Equity Shares _ 132.10 . . 13210
In Quated Shayes theough PMS Pool Account 98.99 - - 98.99
Finaaclal asscts and lisbilities measured at fair value at IMZDIG
' M Levell  Levelz | Level3 ] Towl |
;Finanelal Ascets i
Iovestenent at FVITPLL

In Debentuncs - 76.50 - 7650

. In Quoted units of Mutual funds 15,695.74 - - 15,695.74

| In Quoted Exquity Shares 474,39 - - 47439

| 1n Quoted Shares through PMS Pool Account . . . .

Finzneisl Instruments at Ammortized Cost

The carrying smount of flsancial assets and Foaceial Yablitics messured gt amortised cost in the financial statentents are a seasonsble
approximation of theic fais valucs since the Compuany does not anticipate that the eacrying amounts would be significantly different fram

the valucs that would cventuslly be received or scided
During the year there has boon no trnsfer from one leved to another

South Cily Projects (Kolkata) Lta.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes o Financial Statcments for the year coded 31t Mareh, 2018

Note 35 - Financial Risk Management, Objectives end Policics

mwmwmmarmmwmpmmMmdmwm&unm
finance the Company’s fixcd and warking capita) sequirements « ‘The Company hos vasious financial assets such as trade reoeivables, loans,
investmenty,short-tem deposita and cash & eash equivalimts , which arise directly from its opesations.
mcw-wuwmmummmmmmmwnmammmumomm
risks 2l advises on Emancil risks and the sppropriste (inancial sk govermance framowork for the Company. The Company’s Board of
Dieeross assurcs that the Company’s financia) risk aetiviics aze governcd by eppeopriste policd and proceduses and shat Bnsncisl vitke aze
identifisd, measured end managed in accondance with the Company’s policics and sisk objectives.

The Board of Dircctoes eovicws and ageces policies foe saanaging vach of these dsky, which s summasiced below,
A Ceedix Risk
Coedss sisk is the risk that s counterpany fats co discharge its obEgation to the Company.

The Cosnpuny’s exposure to creuit rigk is influenced mainly by cush and essh oquivalenss, trade receivables and financial asscts measured o
amorised cost.

‘The Gompany continualy monitors defaulls of customons and other countempantics and incorposates. this inforation iwo i credit dsk
controls, Coedit risk reled to cuh and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only tocepting highly sated banks and Evenifying
bark deposits. Other Binancia) assets moasused a1 aonized cost inchudes secusity deposity, Loama given and others. Crodir ik refaged o these
other financizl 2ssees is managed by monitoring the socoverabifity of such smaounts contnuously, whike ax the same Gme internal conteol sysizm
in phse ersure the amounts s within defined Emita.

a) Credh Risk Management

L Credit Risk Rating

The Company ssscsses snd manages crodit risk of Snancial asscts based on following categosics anived on the basis of sssumptions, inpurs aod
finvors specific 1o the clacs of finzncial asscte,

A Loer Crediz Risk
B. Moderate Credit risk
C. High crodit risk
Asser Group [Desexiption ' |[Provision for Expected Credia Loss® !
Cash and cash equivalents, azher bank balances, 12 month expected crodit losa/bfe time expected
iLosar Coodit Risk investments, credit foss
loans snd othee Bnaneisl ssicte
Modemare Credit Rink Tende sosirable,bans e oot Gpuncil amets |3 ot oot et loa /i e xpetad
| Hogh Credit Risk Trade reecivablcs, Joans and other Francial asseta Life ime cxpocted oredit Joss
*Bagod on business environment in which the Company operates, 8 defaclt an o financial axset is cansidered when the counterpary fiils to

mkcpnymmumzluﬂwmdmmﬂawmmlmmﬂm&fﬂumwmmwlwmw
differcaces botwrem curvent sl historied] economic conditiuns,

Asscty gre written ofF when there is no resenabl opectition of recovery, such 5o a debtor decloring bankaupicy or a EBrigation decided egaingt
tho Company, The Company continues to engage with prartics whose baktreers are written off amd attempts to enforoe repapmment, Rocoverics
mzde ace vecognized in satement of profit and logs,

——— : .

!&ulil Rating Particulars 3032018 1 3LOME0IY HLO42016
Cash and eash equivalents, othes

Low Credit Risk bank bakenees, investmonts, lotns 5§7,295.13 53.630.12 43,381.59
and other Grancie axsets

_!l Tigh Creskit Rink Loans and ‘Feade Recaivables 147324 349087 1.461.83

South City Projects {Kolkata) Liu.  Jouth City Projects (w
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SOUTH CITY FROJECTS (EOLEATA) LIMITED
Notes to Pingncial Statentents for the year ended 3iat Masch, 2018

B. Liquidity Risk

Liguidity cisk is vhe risk that the Company will encounter diffimulty in meoting the obligations associated with it finaneial lisbilities
that ase settied by delivering cash or another financial ssset. The Company's apprroach to managing liquidity i to cnaure 28 far ax
passible, thet it will have sufficiont liquidity 1o meet it iablities when they are dus.

Wmmwamwwpﬁﬁmwmmmhmmmwmaw
cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquiditg of the market in which the entity operstes.

Maturitics of Financisl Lishilitics

March 31, 2018 .
:Puu:ulm Lexs thaa 1vesr -5 yeann Mu:::n $ Tewl
Bosowings 30,700.01 2,707.81 157003 | 3498688
Trado Pagable 439301 - 4,3503.01
Security Dipotit 1,85748] - 25037 430108
Othey Finaneial Liskilites 14,700.63 | - 14,701.63
March 31, 2007 i ,
Pesticulans I Lesa than 1 yeas +5 years “"‘;:" Tota)
[Boseomings ; 2176138 105H.72 22094 | M504
Trade Payabie 560429 e | S
Secusity Depotizs s34l - 3 1056400 | 2518
[Orher Finaneial Lishiisies 679810} <] . | amaio
April 1, 2016 _
Pasticubiny i Less than ] yosr 15 yean lio::.lfan s Total
‘Bocrowings 13,39276 15,188.46 - | asan
[Teade Payable 323659 - - | 32588
[Secusity Deposits 04,14 - 402401 411855
|Other Financal Listditer 5,555,472 | - - 5,555.47
C. Masket Risk
a Tatecest Rate Risk

The Comnpany has sken deb to fmance its working eapits] , which expescs it to interest mte risk. Borrowings imued 12 vasishle ritcs expose the
Company to inrtrest rato sk

Tuseress Raie Risk Experare

{Particalus 31032018 I 31022007 01.04.2016
[Vasiable Rate Borrowing 12,703.99 1599150 1748545
tFivd Rte Borsowing | 2205 R T0BST

Interest Rute Sensitivity
Profic of boss and cquiry is sensitive to highey/lower interest expense from bomowings 85 9 result of changes in inlcecst rases,

Parteutary Masch 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017 H

Intcrest Rates increase by 100 dasis painn (127.04 {169.92)
[Frtcrest Ratcs deseeasc by 100 basis painty 12204 16992
*Halding ol other vadshles constant

b, Price Risk

The Cosnpany’s exparur: to price risk arises from investrents hoid and chssified os FYTPL or FYOCL ‘To manzge the price fisk arising feom
fawvestmens, the Company diversifies its partfolio of asscts.

Sensiciolly Analysts
[Paticulats March 31, 2018 Mazch 31,2017
Price Senaitivisy®
Price inesease by 5% VTPL 1,960.13 1,984.68
s docroae by o FVTPL 1,969.15 | 198446
}Hdclingaﬂ Other vasizbles constant South Gity Proieots (Kalkata} L. South Cily Projeots fKolkata) Ltd.
<
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the yeat ended 31st March, 2018

Note 35 « Capita]l management

For the purpose of the Conpany’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all
o&meqtﬁtymamibuubhm&neeqaﬁtyhoﬂ:uofthcpm&%epdmaryobiﬁnoﬁhe%any‘sup’ml
management is to maximise the sharcholdes value.

mwsommmmhmnwmm,mm. swrong credit mting end
hulthympinlmimhmdermsupponiulmimmdpmﬁdudm&eumm;hamholdmthmugbmﬁmﬁng
mmmmnmamwm.m&mmﬁumnmmm;mhmmw
ymmCmpmymhmofﬂphﬂlmquhdm&ehﬁtdmnﬂlbuﬁnmmdhng-mopmﬁngphm
which include capital and other strutegic investments. The funding requitements zre met through 2 mixture of equity
nmmmmmmmmmﬂmhmmm@mmmmm
mmmﬁdpaudfnndingrequhmenu.mmmymoaimup&ulonthehdsofﬂwnudebtwequ&ynﬁo.ne
Cnmpmyisnotwhiectmangmumﬂyimpmedupimlnqﬁmmu.Nudebtmbngmandshmmdehuu
mdumdhymhmduﬁeqﬁ%ﬁmﬁdhgmdﬁdmshmdmﬁqﬁvdmh}mmdmmw

and Bree vescrves (total sescrves excluding OCI). The following table summarizes the capital of the Company:

Tin Lace

Asat Asat Asat
31032018  31.03.2017 01042016

Borowings 3498685 34518.04 2856122
Other Financiol Linbilities 1936285 931292  9,674.02
Trade Payables 439301 560429 323688
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 7080 62869 238516
Net Debt 50,67191  48,806.56  41,106.96
Total capital 3876006 4046881  33,14558

Capital sad Net Debt

Geasing catio

South City Projects (Kotkata) Lid.
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97,43L97  §9,275.37 7425254

60.22% 54.67% 5536%
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes o Financial Statements {oe the year ended 31st Maech, 2018

Note 37 - First-time sdoption of Ind AS

ﬂm&mﬁdsﬂmmmmmmdudﬂMm:hﬁﬂlﬁ.mducﬁmtheﬁumpmyhupmedinmwhmd
AS.

Acconfingly, the Company has prepared financial statcments which comply with Ind AS applicsble for pediods ending ca 31
March 2018, togethee with the compasative period data as st and for the year cnded 31 Masch 2017, as described in the
stmmary a@mmmmmmwmmmwnﬁMWMw
prepaced a8 at 1 April 2016, the Compeny's date of transition 1o Jnd AS. ‘This volx caplains the principal sdjustments made
by the Company in wstating by Indian GAAP financial stxternenss, including the balance sheet 2 at 1 Apsil 2014 and the
financic! statemenits as at and for the yeas ended 31 March 2017.

Excmpticns and exceptions applicd
Tnd AS 10! allows ficsetime adopters cestin exemptioas and mandatory excepticns from the rotraspoctive application of
muhuqdmumuumkrlndﬁm&mmymnppﬁedﬂw&uwhgmpﬁmmlmm

'l‘be(:ompmyhnuclcmdmmmmnﬂnfh:pwpmy,phmmdqﬁpmmdinmgibhmndﬁ:pmme
mtyimvducuondwchwofmmiﬁmumw&mdmwheupcrthcmﬂiouGMPuunApdI.EIShubom
considered as the Cross Block under Tnd AS for respective dasses of assets in recordanec with fnd AS 101- Firsttime
adoption of Indian Accounting Standanls.

The Company has clected to measure all of its investment in subsidisrics and joint vonturss ot their peovious GAAP caerying
value in accordance with Ind AS 101- Fisse-time sdoption of Indiin Accounting Sandards.

muﬁmmatlApﬁlmlﬁmlaﬁlMaxchzul?mmnﬁumw&b:hwmderurdumdnminmdmmﬂhh
Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in acoounting policics) spast from FVTPL — Munsal Funds
wheze application of Indisn GAAP did not require estimation.

muﬁuammdbymmmmympm:mmmuhmwﬁhldASmﬂmwmﬁﬁmnl Apr 2016
{i.c. the dste of transition to Ind-AS) and as of 31 March 20t7.

Ind AS 109 roquires an cotity 10 asscss classification and messrement of financial assets on the basis of the facts 2nd
circumstances that cxist at the date of transition to Ind AS in sccordance with lnd AS 101- Fisst-time zdoption of Indiza
Accounting Standards.

South City Projects (Kolkata) Lw. South City Projects fiplkata) Lta.
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SOUTH CITY PROJECTS (KOLKATA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statemnents for the year ended 31s¢ March, 2018

Nate 381 - Effcct of the Transition co Ind AS
mmamwmmmmmmmmnsuﬁmum snd March 31, 2017 aod reconcitiation of
the Company's Siatement of Profit and Loss for dic yeaz ended March 31, 2016 prepared in aceardsnce with Indlan GAAP and [od AS are presented
below.

Tin Lacs
Total
Total Other Bqulty | Compreheasive
Iscome Remarks
3108201 2016-17
3.45030 6,071.69
12998
Frie valuc/amortission cost of Invesuments in 240795 141523
Jsccondancs with lnd AS 109
[Net Profit us pee IND AS TABN
Balince of Equsy/ Towl comprehensive income | 40,0400 | 3559351 731909
uoder Jad AS

Note 38.2 « Reconciliation of cash ffows for the year caded March 31, 2017
The trznsifian from crerwhile Tndian GAAP to Ind AS has oot made 2 material fmpact on she strcment of cash flaws.

i j Lie.
souip City Projents (Kolkate) Lic. South Gity Projeots (fiQkats)
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South City Peojects (Kotkata) Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the yeas ended st Macch, 2018

Note 3% - Seganent Information

t. The Cmpmyhu&sdmdbﬁnmmmtumnmwmwnyismnccﬁvdromnhcdhlofuﬂowin;hmsmmmly:
() Real estate projeted ; (b) Hentad Activities,

Sepments have been idontified 13 reportable scgments by the Coapany’s chief opemiting decision maker (“CODM"). Scgment profiz amounts ase evalwared
regulasty by the Boanl, which has been identified as the CODM, in dockfing how ro allocar: resoutecs and in asscesing performance,

Sepment Revenue, Results, Assors and Liabifities incude the respective amounty identifiable o cach of dic scgments and emount dllocated o0 4 reascaable
basis. Unallocated expenditure consists of common capendirurs incurced for all the scpmemts aad expensts incurred ot comporate level The maacts aad
lahiiies that annot be allocited between the segments are shown aa unallocated corporate asscts and Ecbilitics respectively.

2 The acconating policies of the repastable segments ase the same a3 the Company’s accovatiog policies deseribed ia Note 3. Segmuent profit (Barnings
Mmhmdepudaﬁonmdmm“dm)mummwmﬁdyhydandthathubmidmﬁﬁcdahCODMhded&nghw
1o allocate resousces and in arscasing pesfarmance. The Company’s Gaancing (induding Gnsnce costs nnd fnance incoe) sad income taxes gre reviewed
on an overall basis and are not allocated 1o opexating scgmentt

3."The Company's activitios zre eestricted wAthin India 2nd hence 5o stpamte geogmphical segment disclosure s considered necessry.

4.The mct cxpeoscs and income, which e not dircedy stribumble to 9 particulsr Business Segment, are thown 55 undllocated corporate

5, Assets and Liabiities thar can oot be allocawed borween the ssgments src shown as a part of wnsllocated corponte asters and Esbilides
respectively.

G. The Company does ot have any szjor customer i Revenue from trangactions with a single exteznal customer does sot amocnt w 0% or more of
the Company's Revenuc.

The {ollowing whle presents tevenue aad profis information fas s Company's operating segmeut for the year cnded Mazch 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017

TinLacs

[Pasticulana Real Eatatc Projects | Reutal Activities Usallocsted “Totl |
200718 | 201617 | 200718 | 201617 | 201718 | 201647 | 201713 | 201617

Revenue
Voral Exeoms) Revenue 3,140.67 | 15934.86] 534244 991408 . - 809212 25848.94
“Fotal Revenue T 314967 1593486) 552441 9914.08 - - 12| 2584896
|Segmeat Results 157206 | 260270] 81464 716037 . - 97261 | 976307
Unallocated Corposste Expenses - - - . 143 74.88 144.34 74.88
Operating Profit/ (loss) 157.96 | 260270 sie6e |  706037| (eadd)]  (488) 82827 | 9,685.18 |
'Othiet lacome 1,835.67 2038] 10524 11264 . - 194090 13172
iUnallocated Other Income . - - . 400176 | 263703 400176 2631.03
. [nterest Income - 313 . 694 - - - 10.07
:Unallocated laterest lucome - - - - . | 26833 . 2,168.33
iFinancial Expeoscs - - 958.18 | 1,195.83 . . 95g.08]  1,19583
(Unatlocated Financial Rxpenses - - . . 269743 | 263054) 269743 269054
"Profit /(loss) Before Tax 197241 | 2607.06 | (99.29)] 4901500 1,14934| 2,035.02] 213247 963958
|Cusent Tax - - . . 61381 1700.00]  61381]  1,70000
[Deferred Tax - - - - 19851 818.35 19851 61635
Income Tax of Easfier Yoz . - - - 5398 . 53.88 | -
Net Profit/(loss) afkes Tox 97241 | 2£07.05 997,50 28304 | 8138y  1,266.27 1§m|

South City Projects {Kolkata) Ltd. South City Pro]eﬂw
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“The following sble prescats nesces and Rubilisies information for the Compay's openating segment foc the yrs ended Maech 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 and Apsil £, 2016

[ Real Batae

velopment | Renel Activities . Usnilocated T Total
O1-Ape-16| 31-Mar-i8 | 3i-Mar-37 | O1-Apr.36] 31-Mar18 | 30.Merd7 | Ol:Apet6] 31-Martf | STMari? | 1

3EMari8 |

_Projects De

| 30Blanty
meng_Assets 1203696 ] 3660574 .Elgps 38856411 35,027.77 = b = | 2 | :2BS0S| 7546235) 78,54502
Unallocated Corporate Atscts . s - - .| 159906 1740841 | 1088865 75,19988| 1740341 | 1088866
[Total Avscts | 07696 36,608.74 EF.EIMIEF. «_| 199861 1740841) @@ - | 102,08491) 92,57086] 8943366
_m.a. )ishilites "1 a3i0109) _ 731865 16837721 1081809 | 1430168 1527004 - | = — -1 znowvs] a400] 321073
Umllocated Comporate |isbibitics - . - - - -_ | _sos2e1t| 3098556| 2418004 | 4042411] 3058556 | 24,1034
Total Lishiliies 210109 | 731065 10,018.00 | 14,10068 4042001 | 3so0sssef - | €334329] s2,90569| ss2eate

Expenditere Inonoed A - 18.85 &5.91 _ 836 689

Unallocated Capita) Expendinece Incureed - - MW 1 2382 89 282
Depreciation snd Amartisation expense A2 19.66 206¢| 9s099| 1088|1300 1064 450 516 spzas| 201137 139582

Noo: &)

Al figeres srein Rupees [akhs. Rignros nuarked with (*) arc bekowr the rovnding off avem sdopted by the Company.

Nove 41:

The Company has mascased its Investment in Preference Sharo of AA Infrapropertics Put. 14d. to be s Compound fioendial [nstraments and accoedingly split the seme as lavertment in Equity Instruments of

INR 123295 lscs and [ovestment in Bicbt

Instrement of INR 1392.05 lacs.

Neic 42 - Sandgrds Issucd bt oot effoctive

Thc smendments to sandands that ere

spplicabie, when they become effective.

irsned, but nat yet effoctive, up to the dute of irpasnce of the Company’s finzncisl stzrements ere disclosed below, The Company futends: to adopt these standards, if

“Yhe Ministry of Corparnts Affsi (MCA) has itsucd the Companics (Indisn Actoasting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017 2nd Coopanies (Indisn Accounting Standands) Amendment Rules, 2018

amending the follxving standaed:

Ind AS 105 Rovenue from Conteacts with Cestomers The Company is eurrently evaluatiog the impacs of implementation of Tnd A$ 115 “Revesee from Conuacs with Customess™ which is spplicable to it

w-ef April 01, 218, Howeves, bazed on o

¢ cvakintion dene so far end based on dhe arvangemens thar the Company has with its castonters for vale of its produas, the implementation of ind AS 115 will not

Isave any sigaificant eccognition snd messnrement impact. Iloweves, there will be sdditional prescatetion s discotine requizement which will be provided by the ezt yenr's fsanciol sacemenis.

Amcndments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Untmbised Losves 'The amendments clasify dhat an entity nceds to conider whether tax kaw restricts the sources of aaxable peafits against
which iy gnﬂrng&eien&naﬂaz of that deductible cempocary difference. Pucthermore, the amendments provide guithnes on how i estity should determing funire taxeble profiss snd erphin the
circumytances in which taxable profit may include the rocoviry of some assets for more (han their earrging smount.

?ugsgﬁgggﬂﬂéﬂ April 2018, These amendiments ke not cxpected to bave any impact on the Compxoy as the Compuay bas no daductible sonpomy

Appendix B to Tnd AS 21 Horeign Cunvncy Transactions end Advanec Considension The Appendix clarifics that, in determining the spot exchange vate to ase on il recogrition of the related ausey,
gﬂﬁ??&&ﬂ?%&uﬁi&ﬂégg ggg?iﬂ&!nguingagﬂgg
recogniscs the Gon-mocctiry asct of Aon-montisry lishility arising from he xdvance consideriion. If dhore are multiple paymeonts of roccipts in sdvence, then the eniity must deternine dhe transseton date foe
each payment or secerpy of advance consclemation.

‘T Appendix is elfcctive for snnunl o
its Snancial stitementy.

Amendiments m led AS 112 Disdosure of Intercsts in Other Ensiticy, Ind AS 40 Iovesrment Propercy sad Ind AS 28 Invostmonts in Assotiates and Jobat Vennues are not applicable e the Compary.

crinds beghning on or after 1 April 2018, However, since the Company’s eurrent practies i in fine with the Interpretation, the Company does not expect 2ny «ffxt oo

Gowh Gity Preizels a»m__wﬁ.ww i N
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